
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 

Page 1 of 9 Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

Waiver and Variance 

Section 1 – General Details: 

This waiver and variance is granted in accordance with the provisions of the Rules of the Texana 
Groundwater Conservation District (the District) and acceptance of this waiver and variance 
constitutes an acknowledgment and agreement that the applicant, well operator, and well owner 
will comply with the terms and conditions of this waiver and variance and the Rules of the District 
not affected by this waiver and variance. 

Waiver and Variance ID: WV-20191219-01 
Permitted Entity: Bower and Saha Aquaculture, LLC 

Applicant Name: Reed Bowers 

Applicant Address: 1205 Frank Stubbs Dr., El Campo, Texas 77437 

Waiver Application ID: AWV-20190307-01 

Amendment Application ID: AAPC-20230329-01 
Associated Permit 

Applications: 
ADW-20190306-01, ADW-20190306-02, ADW-20190306-03, 
ADW-20190306-04, ADW-20190306-05, ADW-20190306-06, 
ADW-20190306-07, AOWF-20190304-03   

Associated Permits: Existing Production Permits:1 VP-20121115-01, VP-
20121203-01, VP-20121203-02, VP-20121203-03, VP-
20121203-04, VP-20121203-05, VP-20121203-06, VP-
20121203-07, AP-201203-14, VPW-20191219-01Drilling 
Permits: DP-20191219-01, DP-20191219-02, DP-20191219-
03, DP-20191219-04, DP-20191219-05, DP-20191219-06, 
DP-20191219-07; and Production Permit: OPWF-
20191219-01. 

Associated District Rules:  Item 12 of Rule 4.2 (Required information for an 
application for a drilling permit);  
Items 9 and 10 of Rule 4.3 (Required information for an 
application for a production permit); 
Item 13 of Rule 4.3 (Production Permit Conditions);  
Item 4 of Rule 4.11 (Attempts to obtain adjacent 
landowner waivers). 
Item 1 of Rule 5.2 (Well Separation Requirement for Well 
Fields); Item 3 of Rule 6.4 (1/2 AFYA Limitation). 

1 These existing production permits shall remain in effect independent of this waiver and variance, 
and those requiring renewal are deemed renewed without changes; but production of the wells is 
governed by this waiver and variance and any conflicting permit terms are suspended in favor of 
this waiver and variance once production begins under OPWF-20191219-01, unless Permitted 
Entity surrenders this waiver and variance to the District.   

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 1 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 2 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

This waiver is conditioned upon the well operator and well owners otherwise complying with the 
Rules of the District and regulations of the State of Texas, as amended, applicable to operating 
water wells within the District.  This waiver confers only the right to use the subject wells under the 
provisions of the Rules of the District and according to the terms of this waiver and variance.  The 
wavier and variance term and conditions may be modified or amended pursuant to the Rules of the 
District.  This waiver is conditioned upon the Permitted Entity and its successors maintaining 
ownership of the contiguous tract of land associated with the well field. 

Section 2 - Finding of Good Cause by the Board of Directors of the District:  
The Board of Directors finds good cause to waive item 12 of Rule 4.2, items 9 and 10 of Rule 4.3, 
item 13 of Rule 4.3, item 4 of Rule 4.11, item 1 of Rule 5.2, and item 3 of Rule 6.4 and to authorize 
production in accordance with the terms of this waiver and variance.  The basis of the finding of 
good cause to grant this waiver is the authorization of production of groundwater of lower quality 
from wells drilled in close proximity to the Carancahua Bay and completed in surficial water strata 
generally known to produce poor-quality groundwater with total dissolved solids typically in excess 
of 5,000 mg/L will likely 1) reduce future demand for high-quality groundwater found in deeper water 
strata in vicinity of the well field site and 2) produce valuable empirical data regarding the 
development of shallow, brackish groundwater resources near the coast line within the District. 
 

Section 3 - Waiver and Variance Granted: 
The Board of Directors grants the following waivers and variances subject to the condition 
established herein: 

1. waive the requirements, established under item 12 of Rule 4.2 and items 9 and 10 of Rule 
4.3,  to submit technical data with drilling and production permit applications and allow the 
data within the reports titled Associated Permitting Applications to the report Assessment 
of Proposed Groundwater Production at Ekstrom Aquaculture LLC Expansion Project 
authored by Venkatesh Uddameri, Ph.D., P.E., and Assessment of Proposed Groundwater 
Production at Ekstrom Aquaculture LLC Expansion Project - Additional Simulations and 
Water Quality Analysis authored by Venkatesh Uddameri, Ph.D., P.E. to suffice for such 
purposes; 

2. waive the requirement, established under item 4 under Rule 4.11 for the applicant to 
attempt to obtain the waivers and identifying any required waivers that were not obtained 
and reason the waiver was not obtained in instances in which the rules of the District allow 
for exceptions contingent on waiver by adjoining or adjacent landowners; 

3. waive the requirement, established under item 1 of Rule 5.2, to prohibit the placement of 
wells of a non-grandfathered well field closer than one foot per every one gallon-per-minute 
to wells not owned by the Permitted Entity and authorize the drilling of the proposed wells 
at locations within the contiguous acreage owned or controlled by the Permitted Entity at 
the tract of land encompassing the well field; 

4. waive the requirement, established under item 3 of Rule 6.4, to limit production of 
groundwater from the subject well field, comprised of existing grandfathered wells with 
historic-use production permits, existing non-grandfathered wells with non-historic-use 
production permits, and proposed non-grandfathered wells, to a rate that does not exceed 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 2 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 3 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

one-half acre foot per year per contiguous surface acre owned or controlled by the 
Permitted Entity at the tract of land encompassing the well field;  

5. waive the performance standards established under item 13 of Rule 4.3 on the condition 
that the performance standards established in this waiver and variance shall apply; 

6. authorize the production of groundwater from the subject well field at a rate not to exceed 
5,884 acre-feet per year; and 

7. authorize the production of groundwater from the subject well field at a rate not to exceed 
9,210 gallons per minute. 

 

Section 4 - Definitions:  
The Board of Directors establishes the following definitions as part of this waiver: 

1. Non-grandfathered Brackish Well (NBW) means a non-grandfathered well operated to 
produce brackish groundwater. 

2. Aquifer Monitoring Site (AMS) means an area located on the contiguous property on 
which the subject well field is located and is designated as an aquifer monitoring site at 
which monitoring wells shall be established and aquifer monitoring activities shall be 
conducted. 

3. Dedicated Aquifer Monitoring Well (DAMW) means a water well located within an AMS 
dedicated to and used solely for aquifer monitoring purposes. 

4. Upper Brackish - Dedicated Aquifer Monitoring Well (UB-DAMW) means a DAMW 
constructed with a well screen isolated by a positive displacement seal within the 
groundwater zone from which NBWs will produce brackish groundwater. 

5. Lower Fresh - Dedicated Aquifer Monitoring Well (LF-DAMW) means a DAMW 
constructed with a well screen isolated by a positive displacement seal within the 
groundwater zone with fresh water located below the zone from which NBWs will produce 
brackish groundwater. 

6. Initial Condition Evaluation Period (ICEP) means the 10-day period of suspended 
groundwater production by the Permitted Entity during which the initial aquifer conditions 
at the well site shall be established. 

7. Initial Condition Adjustment Period (ICAP) means a multi-month continuous duration 
observation period following the initiation of groundwater production from any of the subject 
wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01 requested by the Permitted Entity and authorized 
by the Board of Directors of the District. 

8. Initial Water Level Condition (IWLC) means: 
a. the average water level depth, as the measurement of water level depth below the 

surface, observed in a DAMW during the final 3-day period of the ICEP; or  
b. the average water level depth, as the measurement of water level depth below the 

surface, observed in a DAMW during the most recently established ICAP, if any. 
9. Rolling Evaluation Period (REP) means the 12-month period prior to the conclusion of a 

reporting period. 
10. Drawdown Adjustment Factor (DAF) means the amount of drawdown in feet, as 

approved by the Board of Directors of the District, based on the analysis of water level 
depths below the surface in wells outside a 5-mile radius of the subject well field.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 3 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 4 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

11. Adjusted Water Level Condition (AWLC) means the increased water level depth below 
the surface for a particular calendar year calculated by increasing the value calculated for 
the IWLC by the DAF. 

12. Average Water Level (AVG-WL) means the average value of the measurement of water 
level depth below the surface, observed in a DAMW during the REP. 

13. Acceptable Water Level Change Factor (AWLCF) means the limit of the increase of the 
AVG-WL calculated for a DAMW for a report period that is considered acceptable. 

14. Lower Fresh - Acceptable Water Level Change Factor (LF-AWLCF) is 15 feet for each 
LF-DAMW. 

15. Upper Brackish - Acceptable Water Level Change Factor (UB-AWLCF) is 20 feet for 
each UB-DAMW. 

16. Initial Water Quality Condition (IWQC) means:  
a. the initial water quality conditions, as specific conductivity measurements in µS/cm 

units, observed in a DAMW during the final 3-day period of the ICEP; or 
b. the water quality conditions, as specific conductivity measurements in µS/cm units, 

observed in a DAMW during the most recently established ICAP, if any. 
17. Average Conductivity (AVG-COND) means the average value of all specific conductivity 

measurements, in µS/cm units, collected, at regular intervals, from a DAMW during the 
REP. 

18. Acceptable Conductivity Change Factor (ACCF) means the limit of increase of the AVG-
COND calculated for a DAMW for a report period that is considered acceptable. 

19. Lower Fresh - Acceptable Conductivity Change Factor is 260 µS/cm units. 
20. Upper Brackish - Acceptable Conductivity Change Factor is 2,800 µS/cm units. 
21. Produced Groundwater (PGW) means the volume, in gallons, of groundwater produced 

from a well or set of wells of the subject well field during a specific reporting period. 
22. Produced Groundwater in Acre-Feet (PGW-AF) means the volume, in acre-feet, of 

groundwater produced from a well or set of wells of the subject well field during a specific 
reporting period, calculated by dividing the PGW by 325,851. 

23. Produced Groundwater Year-to-Date (PGW-YTD) means the volume, in gallons, of 
groundwater produced from a well or set of wells of the subject well field from January 1 of 
the report year to the end of the reporting period. 

24. Produced Groundwater Year-to-Date in Acre-Feet (PGW-YTD-AF) means the volume, 
in acre-feet, of groundwater produced from a well or set of wells of the subject well field 
from January 1 of the report year to the end of the reporting period, calculated by dividing 
the PGW-YTD by 325,851. 

25. Average Water Level Difference (AVG-WL-DIFF) means the difference between the 
AVG-WL calculated for IWLCs and the AVG-WL calculated for a report period. 

26. Average Conductivity Difference (AVG-COND-DIFF) means the difference between the 
AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs and the AVG-COND calculated for a report period. 

 

Section 5 – Conditions and Requirements 
The Board of Directors establishes the following conditions and requirements, in addition to those 
requirements established by the Rules of the District not affected by this waiver and variance, in 
conjunction with granting this waiver. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 4 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 5 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

 

Section 5.1 – New Brackish Well Construction Requirements 
The following conditions and requirements related to drilling and construction are established for 
the new NBWs operated under permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. NBWs shall not be drilled to a depth that exceeds 220 feet below the surface of the ground; 
2. NBWs shall not be drilled closer than fifty feet to the nearest property line; and 
3. NBWs shall be constructed in a manner to facilitate the collection of water level 

measurements using a steel tape and water samples directly from the well head. 
 

Section 5.2 – Groundwater Production Limitations 
The following conditions and requirements related to groundwater production are established for 
the water wells operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. Groundwater produced from the wells of the subject well field shall be used solely for 
agricultural purposes; 

2. Groundwater shall not be produced from the grandfathered wells of the subject well field 
at gallons per minute rates that exceed the gallons per minute production rate identified 
within the historic use production permits associated with a specific grandfathered well of 
the well field; and 

3. Groundwater production from any NBW shall not exceed 350 gallons per minute. 
 

Section 5.3 – Groundwater Production Monitoring and Reporting Requirements 
The following conditions and requirements related to groundwater production monitoring and 
reporting are established for the water wells operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-
01: 

1. Groundwater production from each well of the subject well field shall be measured by 
calibrated flow meters. 

2. Flow meters used to measure flow of groundwater shall be re-calibrated at least every 5 
years. 

3. Monthly groundwater production volumes from each well of the subject well field shall be 
recorded and reported to the District on a monthly basis. 

4. Groundwater production measurements from the wells of the subject well field shall be 
reported to the District within 30 days following the end of each monthly monitoring period. 

5. Groundwater production measurements shall be reported in a machine-readable format 
approved by the District. 

 

Section 5.4 – Aquifer Monitoring and Reporting Requirements  
The following conditions and requirements related to aquifer monitoring and reporting are 
established for the well field operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. AMSs shall be established by the Permitted Entity on the well filed site within 300 feet for 
the following locations: 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 5 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 6 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

a. West-AMS:  28°41’6.266” N, 96°23’23.006” W; 
b. Center-AMS:  28°41’8.800” N, 96°22’24.500” W; and 
c. East-AMS:  28°41’9.856” N, 96°21’25.286” W. 

2. A UB-DAMW shall be constructed at each AMS. 
3. A LF-DAMW shall be constructed at each AMS. 
4. Each DAMW shall be maintained by the Permitted Entity for the term of this waiver.  
5. The District shall install and maintain, at the expense of the District, monitoring equipment 

including water level measurement measuring instruments and water conductivity 
measuring instruments at each DAMW. 

6. Each DAMW shall be accessible to the District for the purpose of measuring aquifer 
conditions and installation of aquifer monitoring measuring instruments with reasonable 
advance notice to the Permitted Entity. 

7. Water level measurements and conductivity measurements made and recorded by the 
District shall be used and, if determined to be appropriate by the District, substituted for 
corresponding, i.e. the same location, date, and time, measurements to be made and 
recorded by the Permitted Entity. 

8. Each UB-DAMW shall have hourly water level measured and recorded by the District. 
These measurements can be made using a manufacturer-calibrated transducer. 

9. The aquifer measurements collected during each monthly monitoring period by the District 
from the DAMWs shall be reported to the Permitted Entity within 15 days of the end of each 
monthly monitoring period. 

10. The aquifer measurements shall be reported by the District in a machine-readable format. 
11. The District shall design and implement an off-site monitoring program for the purposes of 

collecting groundwater level and water quality measurements of the well field production 
zones within 2 miles of the fish farm to support the scientifically credible assessment of 
aquifer conditions. 

12. The District shall assess the monitoring data collected through the implementation of the 
off-site monitoring program on an annual basis during the time period this waiver is in effect. 

13. The District shall evaluate the assessment of monitoring data and determine if the creation 
of a special management area by the District in the vicinity of the fish farm is warranted. 

 

Section 5.5 – Aquifer Monitoring Data Evaluation Requirements 
The following conditions and requirements related to aquifer monitoring data evaluation are 
established for the well field to be operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. IWLCs shall be calculated by the District for each DAMW prior to operation of any of the 
subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01; and 

2. IWLCs may be revised by the District, if requested by the Permitted Entity and authorized 
by the board of directors of the district, following the initiation of groundwater production 
from any of the subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01; 

3. IWLCs for each DAMW shall be calculated as:  
a. the AVG-WL for the measurements collected by the District from the DAMW during 

a 3-day duration observation period occurring before commencement of 
operations under OPWF-20191219-01 during which groundwater production from 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 6 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 7 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

other wells owned or controlled by Permitted Entity is suspended and was 
suspended for the preceding 7-day period; or 

b. the AVG-WL for a set of measurements collected by the District from the DAMW 
during the most recently established ICAP, if any. 

4. IWQCs shall be calculated by the District for each DAMW prior to operation of any of the 
subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01; and 

5. IWQCs may be revised by the District, if requested by the Permitted Entity and authorized 
by the board of directors of the district, following the initiation of groundwater production 
from any of the subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01. 

6. IWQCs for each DAMW shall be calculated as:  
a. the AVG-COND for the measurements collected by the District from the DAMW 

during the same 3-day duration observation period occurring before 
commencement of operations under OPWF-20191219-01 as was observed for the 
IWLC calculation; or 

b. the AVG-COND for a set of measurements collected by the District from the DAMW 
during the most recently established ICAP, if any. 

7. The water quality measurements collected by the District to calculate the IWQCs shall be 
collected during the same time period during which the water level measurements were 
observed for IWLC calculation.  

8. For each monthly reporting period, the following parameters shall be calculated and 
reported for each well of the well field by the Permitted Entity: 

a. PGW; 
b. PGW-AF; 
c. PGW-YTD; and 
d. PGW-YTD-AF. 

9. For each monthly reporting period, the following parameters shall be calculated and 
reported for both the current and previous monthly reporting period for each DAMW of the 
well field by the Permitted Entity: 

a. AVG-WL; 
b. AVG-COND; 
c. AVG-WL-DIFF; and 
d. AVG-COND-DIFF. 

 

Section 5.6 – Well Field Monitoring Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding well field monitoring: 

1. the monitoring data related to groundwater production collected and reported by the 
Permitted Entity shall not have data gaps that constitute more than 5% of the total 
prescribed measurements per production well during a year. 

 

Section 5.7 – Groundwater Production Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding groundwater production: 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 7 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 8 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

1. the PGW-YTD-AF for the well field shall not exceed the aggregate volume of groundwater 
production authorized by the District under production permits associated with water wells 
within the well field; and 

2. the PGW-YTD-AF for the wells GW-00112 (IW-1), GW-00115 (IW-2), and R1GW-00452 
(IW-3 Replacement Well) (i.e., wells producing groundwater from the fresh zone) shall not 
exceed the 90% of the aggregate volume of groundwater production authorized by the 
District under production permits associated with water wells within the well field. 

 

Section 5.8 – Groundwater Level Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding groundwater water levels: 

1. the average of the AVG-WL for all of the LF-DAMWs, during a reporting period, shall not 
exceed the IWLC or the most recent AWLC, whichever is greater, by more than the LF-
AWLCF; and 

2. the average of the AVG-WL for all of the UB-DAMWs, during a reporting period, shall not 
exceed the IWLC or the most recent AWLC, whichever is greater, by more than the UB-
AWLCF. 

 

Section 5.9 – Groundwater Quality Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding groundwater quality: 

1. Limits of Acceptable Initial Conditions:  
a. the AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs for any LF-DAMW shall not be greater 

than 2,600 μS/cm; 
b. the AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs for any UB-DAMW shall not be less than 

7,000 μS/cm; and 
c. the AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs for any UB-DAMW shall not be greater 

than 28,000 μS/cm. 
2. Limits of Acceptable Impact Calculated during Reporting Period: 

a. the AVG-COND calculated for any LF-DAMW during the reporting period shall not 
be greater than 3,000 µS/cm; and 

b. the AVG-COND for any UB-DAMW during the reporting period shall not exceed 
33,000 µS/cm. 

 

Section 5.10 – Performance Responses 
The following conditions and requirements as performance responses are established for the well 
field operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. In the event that the groundwater quality performance criteria related to limits of acceptable 
initial conditions of DAMWs are not achieved, groundwater production from the wells 
operated under OPWF-20191219-01 is prohibited until performance is achieved.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 8 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 9 of 9 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

2. In the event that any performance criteria are not satisfied during two consecutive reporting 
periods, groundwater production from wells of the subject well field during the next 
reporting period shall be curtailed to 75 percent of the PGW of the average of the REP.   

3. After the first reporting period with all performance criteria returned to satisfactory 
conditions after the most recent imposition of curtailment under this section, the curtailment 
groundwater production from wells of the subject well field shall be reduced by 50% for the 
next reporting period. 

4. After two consecutive reporting periods with all performance criteria returned to satisfactory 
conditions after the most recent imposition of curtailment under this section, the curtailment 
groundwater production from wells of the subject well field zone shall be eliminated for the 
next reporting period. 

5. In the event that curtailment is imposed on the well field under this section and a cold period 
with sustained temperatures below 45 degrees Fahrenheit is predicted for a duration in 
excess of 5 days, the Permitted Entity shall be permitted to initiate production of up to 350 
acre-feet of groundwater from the well field to provide thermal protection to ponds located 
on the fish farm 3 days in advance of and during the cold period. 

 

Section 5.11 – Failure to Comply with Required Responses 
The following conditions and requirements related to failure to comply with performance responses 
are established for the well field to be operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. In the event that groundwater production from the wells of the subject well field is not 
curtailed as required under this waiver, groundwater production from the wells of the 
subject well field shall be terminated until all enforcement proceedings have concluded. 

  

Authorization 
 
On _________________________, the Board of Directors approved a motion instructing the 
General Manager to issue the waiver and variance request as described above. 

  

_____________________________________________   ___________________ 
Tim Andruss, General Manager     Date 
 
 

Waiver and Variance Acceptance 

 

_____________________________________________   ___________________ 
Reed Bowers, President of Bowers and Saha Aquaculture, LLC  Date 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 9 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 10 of 178



Appendix-A

TGCD - WV-20191219-01 - Comparison to 20240403 Draft - All Mark Up.pdf

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 11 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 1 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

Waiver and Variance 

Section 1 – General Details: 

This waiver and variance is granted in accordance with the provisions of the Rules of the Texana 
Groundwater Conservation District (the District) and acceptance of this waiver and variance 
constitutes an acknowledgment and agreement that the applicant, well operator, and well owner 
will comply with the terms and conditions of this waiver and variance and the Rules of the District 
not affected by this waiver and variance. 

Waiver and Variance ID: WV-20191219-01 
Permitted Entity: EkstromBower and Saha Aquaculture, LLC 

Applicant Name: James P. Ekstrom, PresidentReed Bowers 

Applicant Address: 1205 Frank Stubbs Dr., El Campo, Texas 77437 

Waiver Application ID: AWV-20190307-01 

Amendment Application ID: AAPC-20230329-01 
Associated Permit 

Applications: 
ADW-20190306-01, ADW-20190306-02, ADW-20190306-03, 
ADW-20190306-04, ADW-20190306-05, ADW-20190306-06, 
ADW-20190306-07, AOWF-20190304-03   

Associated Permits: Existing Production Permits:1 VP-20121115-01, VP-
20121203-01, VP-20121203-02, VP-20121203-03, VP-
20121203-04, VP-20121203-05, VP-20121203-06, VP-
20121203-07, AP-201203-14, VPW-20191219-01 

Drilling Permits: DP-20191219-01, DP-20191219-02, DP-
20191219-03, DP-20191219-04, DP-20191219-05, DP-
20191219-06, DP-20191219-07; and 

Production Permit: OPWF-20191219-01. 
Associated District Rules:  Item 12 of Rule 4.2 (Required information for an 

application for a drilling permit);  
Items 9 and 10 of Rule 4.3 (Required information for an 
application for a production permit); 
Item 13 of Rule 4.3 (Production Permit Conditions);  
Item 4 of Rule 4.11 (Attempts to obtain adjacent 
landowner waivers). 
Item 1 of Rule 5.2 (Well Separation Requirement for Well 

 
1 These existing production permits shall remain in effect independent of this waiver and variance, 
and those requiring renewal are deemed renewed without changes; but production of the wells is 
governed by this waiver and variance and any conflicting permit terms are suspended in favor of 
this waiver and variance once production begins under OPWF-20191219-01, unless Permitted 
Entity surrenders this waiver and variance to the District.   

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 12 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 2 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

Fields); Item 3 of Rule 6.4 (1/2 AFYA Limitation). 
 

This waiver is conditioned upon the well operator and well owners otherwise complying with the 
Rules of the District and regulations of the State of Texas, as amended, applicable to operating 
water wells within the District.  This waiver confers only the right to use the subject wells under the 
provisions of the Rules of the District and according to the terms of this waiver and variance.  The 
wavier and variance term and conditions may be modified or amended pursuant to the Rules of the 
District.  This waiver is conditioned upon the Permitted Entity and its successors maintaining 
ownership of the contiguous tract of land associated with the well field. 

Section 2 - Finding of Good Cause by the Board of Directors of the District:  
The Board of Directors finds good cause to waive item 12 of Rule 4.2, items 9 and 10 of Rule 4.3, 
item 13 of Rule 4.3, item 4 of Rule 4.11, item 1 of Rule 5.2, and item 3 of Rule 6.4 and to authorize 
production in accordance with the terms of this waiver and variance.  The basis of the finding of 
good cause to grant this waiver is the authorization of production of groundwater of lower quality 
from wells drilled in close proximity to the Carancahua Bay and completed in surficial water strata 
generally known to produce poor-quality groundwater with total dissolved solids typically in excess 
of 5,000 mg/L will likely 1) reduce future demand for high-quality groundwater found in deeper water 
strata in vicinity of the well field site, 2) reduce the negative impacts associated with production of 
groundwater on higher quality groundwater in the vicinity of the well field site in deeper water 
bearing strata, and 3 and 2) produce valuable empirical data regarding the development of shallow, 
brackish groundwater resources near the coast line within the District. 
 

Section 3 - Waiver and Variance Granted: 
The Board of Directors grants the following waivers and variances subject to the condition 
established herein: 

1. waive the requirements, established under item 12 of Rule 4.2 and items 9 and 10 of Rule 
4.3,  to submit technical data with drilling and production permit applications and allow the 
data within the reports titled Associated Permitting Applications to the report Assessment 
of Proposed Groundwater Production at Ekstrom Aquaculture LLC Expansion Project 
authored by Venkatesh Uddameri, Ph.D., P.E., and Assessment of Proposed Groundwater 
Production at Ekstrom Aquaculture LLC Expansion Project - Additional Simulations and 
Water Quality Analysis authored by Venkatesh Uddameri, Ph.D., P.E. to suffice for such 
purposes; 

2. waive the requirement, established under item 4 under Rule 4.11 for the applicant to 
attempt to obtain the waivers and identifying any required waivers that were not obtained 
and reason the waiver was not obtained in instances in which the rules of the District allow 
for exceptions contingent on waiver by adjoining or adjacent landowners; 

3. waive the requirement, established under item 1 of Rule 5.2, to prohibit the placement of 
wells of a non-grandfathered well field closer than one foot per every one gallon-per-minute 
to wells not owned by the Permitted Entity and authorize the drilling of the proposed wells 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 13 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 3 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

at locations within the contiguous acreage owned or controlled by the Permitted Entity at 
the tract of land encompassing the well field; 

4. waive the requirement, established under item 3 of Rule 6.4, to limit production of 
groundwater from the subject well field, comprised of existing grandfathered wells with 
historic-use production permits, existing non-grandfathered wells with non-historic-use 
production permits, and proposed non-grandfathered wells, to a rate that does not exceed 
one-half acre foot per year per contiguous surface acre owned or controlled by the 
Permitted Entity at the tract of land encompassing the well field;  

5. waive the performance standards established under item 13 of Rule 4.3 on the condition 
that the performance standards established in this waiver and variance shall apply; 

6. authorize the production of groundwater from the subject well field at a rate not to exceed 
5,884 acre-feet per year; and 

7. authorize the production of groundwater from the subject well field at a rate not to exceed 
9,210 gallons per minute. 

 

Section 4 - Definitions:  
The Board of Directors establishes the following definitions as part of this waiver: 

1. Non-grandfathered Brackish Well (NBW) means a non-grandfathered well operated to 
produce brackish groundwater. 

2. Aquifer Monitoring Site (AMS) means an area located on the contiguous property on 
which the subject well field is located and is designated as an aquifer monitoring site at 
which monitoring wells shall be established and aquifer monitoring activities shall be 
conducted. 

3. Dedicated Aquifer Monitoring Well (DAMW) means a water well located within an AMS 
dedicated to and used solely for aquifer monitoring purposes. 

4. Upper Brackish - Dedicated Aquifer Monitoring Well (UB-DAMW) means a DAMW 
constructed with a well screen isolated by a positive displacement seal within the 
groundwater zone from which NBWs will produce brackish groundwater. 

5. Lower Fresh - Dedicated Aquifer Monitoring Well (LF-DAMW) means a DAMW 
constructed with a well screen isolated by a positive displacement seal within the 
groundwater zone with fresh water located below the zone from which NBWs will produce 
brackish groundwater. 

6. Initial Condition Evaluation Period (ICEP) means the 10-day period of suspended 
groundwater production by the Permitted Entity during which the initial aquifer conditions 
at the well site shall be established. 

7. Initial Condition Adjustment Period (ICAP) means a multi-month continuous duration 
observation period following the initiation of groundwater production from any of the subject 
wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01 requested by the Permitted Entity and authorized 
by the Board of Directors of the District. 

8. Initial Water Level Condition (IWLC) means: 
a. the average water level depth, as the measurement of water level depth below the 

surface, observed in a DAMW during the final 3-day period of the ICEP.; or  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 14 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 4 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

b. Annual the average water level depth, as the measurement of water level depth 
below the surface, observed in a DAMW during the most recently established 
ICAP, if any. 

9. Rolling Evaluation Period (REP) means the 12-month period prior to the conclusion of a 
reporting period. 

7.10. Drawdown Adjustment Factor (ADAFDAF) means the amount of drawdown in 
feet, as calculatedapproved by the Board of Directors of the District, based on 
observationsthe analysis of water level depths below the surface in wells in (a) the “Upper 
Brackish” groundwater zone, as described in 4., above, and (b) in the “Lower Fresh” 
groundwater zone, as described in outside a 5., above, within a 5 -mile radius of the subject 
well field attributed to causes other than the groundwater production by Permitted Entity at 
the end of a particular calendar year relative to IWLC.  

8.11. Adjusted Water Level Condition (AWLC) means the increased water level depth 
below the surface for a particular calendar year determinedcalculated by increasing the 
depthvalue calculated for the IWLC by the ADAFDAF. 

12. Average Water Level (AVG-WL) means the average value of all the measurement of 
water level depth measurements collected, at regular intervals, frombelow the surface, 
observed in a DAMW during the REP. 

9.13. Acceptable Water Level Change Factor (AWLCF) means the limit of the 
increase of the AVG-WL calculated for a DAMW for a report period of timethat is considered 
acceptable. 

14. Lower Fresh - Acceptable Water Level Change Factor (LF-AWLCF) is 15 feet for each 
LF-DAMW. 

15. Upper Brackish - Acceptable Water Level Change Factor (UB-AWLCF) is 20 feet for 
each UB-DAMW. 

16. Initial Water Quality Condition (IWQC) means:  
a. the initial water quality conditions, as temperature-corrected, specific conductivity 

measurements in µS/cm units, observed in a DAMW during the final 3-day period 
of the ICEP.; or 

b. the water quality conditions, as specific conductivity measurements in µS/cm units, 
observed in a DAMW during the most recently established ICAP, if any. 

17. Average Conductivity (AVG-COND) means the average value of all temperature-
corrected, specific conductivity measurements, in µS/cm units, collected, at regular 
intervals, from a DAMW during the REP. 

18. Acceptable Conductivity Change Factor (ACCF) means the limit of increase of the AVG-
COND calculated for a DAMW for a report period of timethat is considered acceptable. 

19. Lower Fresh - Acceptable Conductivity Change Factor is 260 µS/cm units. 
10.20. Upper Brackish - Acceptable Conductivity Change Factor is 2,800 µS/cm 

units. 
11.21. Produced Groundwater (PGW) means the volume, in gallons, of groundwater 

produced from a well or set of wells of the subject well field during a specific reporting 
period. 

12.22. Produced Groundwater in Acre-Feet (PGW-AF) means the volume, in acre-feet, 
of groundwater produced from a well or set of wells of the subject well field during a specific 
reporting period, calculated by dividing the PGW by 325,851. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 15 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 5 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

13.23. Produced Groundwater Year-to-Date (PGW-YTD) means the volume, in gallons, 
of groundwater produced from a well or set of wells of the subject well field from January 
1 of the report year to the end of the reporting period. 

14.24. Produced Groundwater Year-to-Date in Acre-Feet (PGW-YTD-AF) means the 
volume, in acre-feet, of groundwater produced from a well or set of wells of the subject well 
field from January 1 of the report year to the end of the reporting period, calculated by 
dividing the PGW-YTD by 325,851. 

15.25. Average Water Level Difference (AVG-WL-DIFF) means the difference between 
the AVG-WL calculated for IWLCs and the AVG-WL calculated for a report period. 

16.26. Average Conductivity Difference (AVG-COND-DIFF) means the difference 
between the AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs and the AVG-COND calculated for a 
report period. 

 

Section 5 – Conditions and Requirements 
The Board of Directors establishes the following conditions and requirements, in addition to those 
requirements established by the Rules of the District not affected by this waiver and variance, in 
conjunction with granting this waiver. 
 

Section 5.1 – New Brackish Well Construction Requirements 
The following conditions and requirements related to drilling and construction are established for 
the new NBWs operated under permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. NBWs shall not be drilled to a depth that exceeds 220 feet below the surface of the ground; 
2. NBWs shall not be drilled closer than fifty feet to the nearest property line; and 
3. NBWs shall be constructed in a manner to facilitate the collection of water level 

measurements using a steel tape and water samples directly from the well head. 
 

Section 5.2 – Groundwater Production Limitations 
The following conditions and requirements related to groundwater production are established for 
the water wells operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. Groundwater produced from the wells of the subject well field shall be used solely for 
agricultural purposes; 

2. Groundwater shall not be produced from the grandfathered wells of the subject well field 
at gallons per minute rates that exceed the gallons per minute production rate identified 
within the historic use production permits associated with a specific grandfathered well of 
the well field; and 

3. Groundwater production from any NBW shall not exceed 350 gallons per minute. 
 

Section 5.3 – Groundwater Production Monitoring and Reporting Requirements 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 16 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 6 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

The following conditions and requirements related to groundwater production monitoring and 
reporting are established for the water wells operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-
01: 

1. Groundwater production from each well of the subject well field shall be measured by 
calibrated flow meters. 

2. Flow meters used to measure flow of groundwater shall be re-calibrated at least every 5 
years. 

3. Monthly groundwater production volumes from each well of the subject well field shall be 
recorded and reported to the District on a monthly basis. 

4. Groundwater production measurements from the wells of the subject well field shall be 
reported to the District within 1530 days following the end of each monthly monitoring 
period. 

5. Groundwater production measurements shall be reported in a machine-readable format 
approved by the District. 

 

Section 5.4 – Aquifer Monitoring and Reporting Requirements  
The following conditions and requirements related to aquifer monitoring and reporting are 
established for the well field operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. AMSs shall be established by the Permitted Entity on the well filed site within 300 feet for 
the following locations: 

a. West-AMS:  28°41’6.266” N, 96°23’23.006” W; 
b. Center-AMS:  28°41’08.8”41’8.800” N, 96°22’24.5”500” W; and 
c. East-AMS:  28°41’9.856” N, 96°21’25.286” W. 

2. A UB-DAMW shall be constructed at each AMS. 
3. A LF-DAMW shall be constructed at each AMS. 
4. Each DAMW shall be maintained by the Permitted Entity for the term of this waiver.  
5. The District shall install and maintain, at the expense of the District, monitoring equipment 

including water level measurement probesmeasuring instruments and water conductivity 
probesmeasuring instruments at each DAMW. 

6. Each DAMW shall be accessible to the District for the purpose of measuring aquifer 
conditions and installation of aquifer monitoring probesmeasuring instruments with 
reasonable advance notice to the Permitted Entity. 

7. Water level measurements and conductivity measurements made and recorded by the 
District shall be used and, if determined to be appropriate by the District, substituted for 
corresponding, i.e. the same location, date, and time, measurements to be made and 
recorded by the Permitted Entity. 

8. Each UB-DAMW shall have hourly water level measured and recorded by the District. 
These measurements can be made using a manufacturer-calibrated transducer. 

9. Each UB-DAMW shall have water level, temperature, and specific conductivity measured 
and recorded routinely on a no-less-than weekly-basis by the Permitted Entity. These 
measurements can be made using a manufacturer-calibrated transducer. 

10. Each LF-DAMW shall have water level, temperature, and specific conductivity measured 
and recorded routinely on a no-less-than weekly-basis by the Permitted Entity. These 
measurements can be made using a manufacturer-calibrated transducer. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 17 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 7 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

11. The aquifer measurements collected during each monthly monitoring period by the 
Permitted Entity from the DAMWs shall be reported to the District within 15 days of the end 
of each monthly monitoring period. 

12. The aquifer measurements shall be reported by the Permitted Entity in a machine-readable 
format approved by the District. 

13.9. The aquifer measurements collected during each monthly monitoring period by the 
District from the DAMWs shall be reported to the Permitted Entity within 15 days of the end 
of each monthly monitoring period. 

14.10. The aquifer measurements shall be reported by the District in a machine-readable 
format. 

11. The District shall design and implement an off-site monitoring program for the purposes of 
collecting groundwater level and water quality measurements of the well field production 
zones within 2 miles of the fish farm to support the scientifically credible assessment of 
aquifer conditions. 

12. The District shall assess the monitoring data collected through the implementation of the 
off-site monitoring program on an annual basis during the time period this waiver is in effect. 

13. The District shall evaluate the assessment of monitoring data and determine if the creation 
of a special management area by the District in the vicinity of the fish farm is warranted. 

 

Section 5.5 – Aquifer Monitoring Data Evaluation Requirements 
The following conditions and requirements related to aquifer monitoring data evaluation are 
established for the well field to be operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. IWLCs shall be calculated by the District for each DAMW prior to operation of any of the 
subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01; and 

2. IWLCs may be revised by the District, if requested by the Permitted Entity and authorized 
by the board of directors of the district, following the initiation of groundwater production 
from any of the subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01; 

2.3. IWLCs for each DAMW shall be calculated as:  
a. the AVG-WL for the measurements collected by the District from the DAMW during 

a 3-day duration observation period occurring before commencement of 
operations under OPWF-20191219-01; and 

b.a. The water level measurements collected by the District to calculate the IWLCs 
shall be collected during a time period during which groundwater production from 
other wells owned or controlled by Permitted Entity is suspended and was 
suspended for the preceding 7-day period. ; or 

b. the AVG-WL for a set of measurements collected by the District from the DAMW 
during the most recently established ICAP, if any. 

3.4. IWQCs shall be calculated by the District for each DAMW prior to operation of any of the 
subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01.; and 

5. IWQCs may be revised by the District, if requested by the Permitted Entity and authorized 
by the board of directors of the district, following the initiation of groundwater production 
from any of the subject wells under permit OPWF-20191219-01. 

4.6. IWQCs for each DAMW shall be calculated as:  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 18 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 8 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

a. the AVG-COND for the measurements collected by the District from the DAMW 
during the same 3-day duration observation period occurring before 
commencement of operations under OPWF-20191219-01 as was observed for the 
IWLC calculation; andor 

b. the AVG-COND for a set of measurements collected by the District from the DAMW 
during the most recently established ICAP, if any. 

5.7. The water quality measurements collected by the District to calculate the IWQCs shall be 
collected during the same time period during which groundwater production from other 
wells owned or controlled by Permitted Entity is suspended and was suspended for the 
preceding 7-day period as waswater level measurements were observed for IWLC 
calculation.  

6.8. For each monthly reporting period, the following parameters shall be calculated and 
reported for each well of the well field by the Permitted Entity: 

a. PGW; 
b. PGW-AF; 
c. PGW-YTD; and 
d. PGW-YTD-AF. 

7.9. For each monthly reporting period, the following parameters shall be calculated and 
reported for both the current and previous monthly reporting period for each DAMW of the 
well field by the Permitted Entity: 

a. AVG-WL; 
b. AVG-COND; 
c. AVG-WL-DIFF; and 
d. AVG-COND-DIFF. 

 

Section 5.6 – Well Field Monitoring Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding well field monitoring: 

1. the monitoring data related to groundwater production collected and reported by the 
Permitted Entity shall not have data gaps that constitute more than 5% of the total 
prescribed measurements per production well during a year;. 

2. the monitoring data related to water level measurements collected and reported by the 
Permitted Entity shall not have data gaps that constitute more than 5% of the total 
prescribed measurements per monitoring well during a year; and 

3. the monitoring data related to water quality measurements collected and reported by the 
Permitted Entity shall not have data gaps that constitute more than 5% of the total 
prescribed measurements per monitoring well during a year. 

 

Section 5.7 – Groundwater Production Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding groundwater production: 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 19 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 9 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

1. the PGW-YTD-AF for the well field shall not exceed the aggregate volume of groundwater 
production authorized by the District under production permits associated with water wells 
within the well field.; and 

2. the PGW-YTD-AF for the wells GW-00112 (IW-1), GW-00115 (IW-2), and R1GW-00452 
(IW-3 Replacement Well) (i.e., wells producing groundwater from the fresh zone) shall not 
exceed the 90% of the aggregate volume of groundwater production authorized by the 
District under production permits associated with water wells within the well field. 

 

Section 5.8 – Groundwater Level Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding groundwater water levels: 

1. the average of the AVG-WL for all of the LF-DAMWs, during a reporting period, shall not 
beexceed the IWLC or the most recent AWLC, whichever is greater, by more than 10 feet 
lower in depth than the AWLC for any LF-DAMWAWLCF; and 

2. the average of the AVG-WL for all of the UB-DAMWs, during a reporting period, shall not 
beexceed the IWLC or the most recent AWLC, whichever is greater, by more than 15 feet 
lower in depth than the AWLC for any UB-DAMWAWLCF. 

 

Section 5.9 – Groundwater Quality Performance Criteria 
The following conditions and requirements are established as performance criteria to demonstrate 
the compliance with production permit OPWF-20191219-01 regarding groundwater quality: 

1. Limits of Acceptable Initial Conditions:  
a. the AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs for any LF-DAMW shall not be greater 

than 2,600 μS/cm; 
b. the AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs for any UB-DAMW shall not be less than 

7,000 μS/cm; and 
c. the AVG-COND calculated for the IWQCs for any UB-DAMW shall not be greater 

than 28,000 μS/cm. 
2. Limits of Acceptable Impact Calculated during Reporting Period: 

a. the AVG-COND calculated for any LF-DAMW during the reporting period shall not 
be greater than 110 percent of the corresponding AVG-COND of the IWQCs3,000 
µS/cm; and 

b. the AVG-COND for any UB-DAMW during the reporting period shall not exceed 
33,000 µS/cm. 

 

Section 5.10 – Brackish Zone Performance Responses 
The following conditions and requirements as performance responses are established for the 
brackish well field zone to be operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. In the event that the groundwater quality performance criteria related to limits of acceptable 
initial conditions of DAMWs are not achieved, groundwater production from the new 
NBWswells operated under OPWF-20191219-01 is prohibited until performance is 
achieved.  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 20 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 10 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

2. In the event that any performance criteria are not satisfied during two consecutive reporting 
periods, groundwater production from wells of the subject well field zone during the next 
reporting period shall be curtailed to 75 percent of the PGW of the most recent reporting 
periodaverage of the REP.   

3. Should curtailment be required due to failure to meetAfter the performance criteria as 
outlined in this section but be met during the first reporting period following curtailment, the 
curtailment shall be reduced by 25 percent of the total initial curtailment amount for the 
next reporting period and each reporting period thereafter until production has been 
restored to the PGW of the reporting period previous to the curtailment at which point the 
curtailment shall be deemed terminated. 

4. In the event that any performance criteria are not satisfied during two consecutive reporting 
periods and the Permitted Entity includes with its report a statement identifying the 
circumstances which caused the performance criteria exceedance, the General Manager 
shall review the Permitted Entity’s statement. The General Manager may waive or reduce 
the performance responses described in this section if the Permitted Entity makes a 
scientifically-credible showing that the exceedance was caused byall performance criteria 
returned to satisfactory conditions outside the Permitted Entity’s reasonable control, 
including force majeure.  Force majeure is (a) an act of God; (b) flood, drought, fire, 
earthquake, hurricane, storm surge, or explosion; (c) war, invasion, hostilities (whether war 
is declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot, or other civil unrest; (d) action by any 
governmental authority, including an order or law. The Permitted Entity shall be deemed 
on notice of potential curtailment for any failure to meet the reporting criteria in two 
consecutive reporting periods.  

5.3. In the event that any performance criteria are not satisfied for more than two consecutive 
reporting periods, and the General Manager determines that such exceedance was not 
caused by factors outside the Permitted Entity’s reasonable control, after the most recent 
imposition of curtailment under this section, the curtailment groundwater production from 
wells of the subject well field zone during the next reporting period shall be curtailed to 75 
percent of the PGW of the most recentshall be reduced by 50% for the next reporting 
period. 

 

Section 5.11 – Fresh Zone Performance Responses 
The followingAfter two consecutive reporting periods with all performance criteria returned to 
satisfactory conditions and requirements as performance responses are established for the fresh 
water well field zone to be operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

6.4. In the event that any performance criteria are not satisfied during two consecutive reporting 
periods, after the most recent imposition of curtailment under this section, the curtailment 
groundwater production from wells of the subject well field zone during the next reporting 
period shall be curtailed to 75 percent of the PGW of the most recentshall be eliminated 
for the next reporting period. 

1. In the event that any performance criteria are not satisfied during two consecutive reporting 
periods and the Permitted Entity includes with its report a statement identifying the 
circumstances which caused the performance criteria exceedance, the General Manager 
shall review the Permitted Entity’s statement. The General Manager may waive or reduce 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 21 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 11 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

the performance responses described in this section if the Permitted Entity makes a 
scientifically-credible showing that the exceedance was caused by conditions outside the 
Permitted Entity’s reasonable control, including force majeure.  Force majeure is (a) an act 
of God; (b) flood, drought, fire, earthquake, hurricane, storm surge, or explosion; (c) war, 
invasion, hostilities (whether war is declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot, or other 
civil unrest; (d) action by any governmental authority, including an order or law. The 
Permitted Entity shall be deemed on notice of potential curtailment for any failure to meet 
the reporting criteria in two consecutive reporting periods.  

2. Should curtailment be required due to failure to meet the performance criteria as outlined 
in this section but be met during the reporting period following curtailment, the curtailment 
shall be reduced by 25 percent of the total initial curtailment amount for the next reporting 
period and each reporting period thereafter until production has been restored to the PGW 
of the reporting period previous to the curtailment at which point the curtailment shall be 
deemed terminated. 

3. In the event that any performance criteria are not satisfied for more than two consecutive 
reporting periods, and the General Manager determines that such exceedance was not 
caused by factors outside the Permitted Entity’s reasonable control, groundwater 
production from wells of the subject well field zone during the next reporting period shall 
be curtailed to 75 percent of the PGW of the most recent reporting period. 

 
5. In the event that curtailment is imposed on the well field under this section and a cold period 

with sustained temperatures below 45 degrees Fahrenheit is predicted for a duration in 
excess of 5 days, the Permitted Entity shall be permitted to initiate production of up to 350 
acre-feet of groundwater from the well field to provide thermal protection to ponds located 
on the fish farm 3 days in advance of and during the cold period. 

 

Section 5.1211 – Failure to Comply with Required Responses 
The following conditions and requirements related to failure to comply with performance responses 
are established for the well field to be operated under production permit OPWF-20191219-01: 

1. In the event that groundwater production from the wells of the subject well field is not 
curtailed as required under this waiver, groundwater production from the wells of the 
subject well field shall be terminated until all enforcement proceedings have concluded. 

  

Section 5.13 – Successful Compliance with Performance Criteria 
On or after the date three years after the Permitted Entity first operates under permit OPWF-
20191219-01, if the performance criteria herein have been satisfied, the Permitted Entity may 
request that monthly reporting and response periods be adjusted to longer periods as reasonably 
supported by the groundwater production data and monitoring data.     
 
 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 22 of 178



 

 
WV-20191219-01 (Draft Revision 
20240403) 
 

 
Page 12 of 12 

 

Bower and Saha 
Aquaculture, LLC 

  
  
   

Authorization 
 
On _________________________, the Board of Directors approved a motion instructing the 
General Manager to issue the waiver and variance request as described above. 

  

_____________________________________________   ___________________ 
Tim Andruss, General Manager     Date 
 
 

 

Waiver and Variance Acceptance 

 

_____________________________________________   ___________________ 
James P. EkstromReed Bowers, President of EkstromBowers and Saha Aquaculture, LLC 
 Date 

 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 23 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 24 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 25 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 26 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 27 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 28 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 29 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 30 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 31 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 32 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 33 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 34 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 35 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 36 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 37 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 38 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 39 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 40 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 41 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 42 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 43 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 44 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 45 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 46 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 47 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 48 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 49 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 50 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 51 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 52 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 53 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 54 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 55 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 56 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 57 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 58 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 59 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 60 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 61 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 62 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 63 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 64 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 65 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 66 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 67 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 68 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 69 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 70 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 71 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 72 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 73 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 74 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 75 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 76 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 77 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 78 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 79 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 80 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 81 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 82 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 83 of 178



 

 

 

July 7, 2024 
 
Mr. Tim Andruss 
Victoria County Groundwater Conservation District 
2805 N. Navarro Street, Suite 210 
Victoria, TX 77901 

RE: Proposal to Apply Geostatistical Techniques to Interpret Measured 2023 Water Levels for 
Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, Texana GCD and Victoria County GCD 

Dear Mr. Andruss, 

INTERA Incorporated (INTERA) proposes to apply geostatistical techniques to interpret measured 2023 
water level in Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, Texana GCD and Victoria County GCD.  The proposed 
work will expand the analysis of measured water levels performed in the following four documents 
prepared by INTERA:  

• Application of Geostatistical Techniques to Quantify Changes in Water Levels; Report prepared in 
2021 

• Drilling Techniques, Field Protocols, and Proposed Monitoring Well Locations to Support the 
Development of a Reliable Program for Monitoring Water Levels; Report prepared in 2022 

• Application of Geostatistical Techniques to Interpret Measured 2021 Water Levels; Memorandum 
prepared in 2022  

• Application of Geostatistical Techniques to Interpret Measured 2022 Water Levels; Memorandum 
prepared in 2023  

The proposed work will mimic INTERA’s analyses and reporting of the 2021 and 2022 measured water 
levels documented in the two memorandums cited above.  The work will include performing the following 
tasks:     

• Generate contours of hydraulic head based on measured water levels in 2023 water levels that 
have been detrended using the methods described by the INTERA (2021) (see referenced above)  
for the Chicot Aquifer, Evangeline Aquifer, and combined Chicot & Evangeline aquifers.  

• Determine change in average water levels over time from 2000 to 2023 and update the tables and 
figures contained in Chapter 5 of Young and others (2021) for the Chicot Aquifer, Evangeline 
Aquifer, and combined Chicot & Evangeline aquifers. 

• Prepare four presentation that presents the results for Calhoun County Groundwater 
Conservation District (GCD), Refugio GCD, Texana GCD, and Victoria County GCD:  

• Prepare a memorandum that documents the application of geostatistical techniques to interpret 
measured 2023 water levels and provides the figures and tables discussed above.    

The cost for performing the completing the work is $18,000. The project will be fixed priced. The 
presentations and the memorandum will be completed in approximately 5 months.  The 
memorandum will be similar in its content and figures to the INTERA (2023) memorandum that 
provides an analysis of the 2022 water level data.   

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 84 of 178



 

 

Proposal to Apply Geostatistical Techniques to Interpret Measured 2023 Water Levels  for Calhoun County GCD, Refugio GCD, Texana GCD and 

Victoria County GCD 

July 7, 2024 

Page 2 

 

I look forward to discussing the proposal with you.  

 

Sincerely,  

 
Steven C Young, PhD, PE, PG 
Principal Geoscientist 
INTERA, Inc  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 85 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 1 of 19 

 
The meeting of the Texana Groundwater Conservation District Board of Directors 
convened at 411 N. Wells, Edna, Texas 77957 on Thursday, April 18, 2024, at 6:00 PM. 
 
The following representatives of Texana Groundwater Conservation District attended the 
meeting: 

Precinct 1: John Boone Present 
Precinct 2: Michael Skalicky Absent 
Precinct 3: Clifford Born Present 
Precinct 4: Charles Marr  Present 
At Large: Jim Revel Absent 
At Large: Alfred Tupa Present 
At Large: Robert Gendke  Present 
General Manager: Tim Andruss Present 
Legal Counsel: Jim Allison of Allison, Bass & Magee, LLP Present 

 
Agenda Item 1:  Call the meeting to order and welcome guests. 
 

Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Tupa called the meeting to order at approximately 6:00 
PM. 
 
Board Action:  None. 

 
Agenda Item 2:  Receive public comments. 
 

Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Skalicky offered to accept public comment from 
attendees. 
 
No comments were made at this time. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 3:  Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater management including the efforts and activities of the District 
regarding permitting, complaints, investigations, violations, and enforcement 
cases associated with permitting. 
 

3.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Management 
 
Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Andruss offered the following report:  
 
Regarding Well Registration Processing for FY2024. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 86 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 2 of 19 

    
As of April 10, 2024, staff had received 10 well registration applications (ARWs) 
since October 1, 2023: 
 
As of April 10, 2024, staff had received 23 Notices of Intent to Drill a Well (NIDWs) 
since October 1, 2023: 
 
Regarding Production Permit Renewal Processing for FY2024. 
 
As of April 10, 2024, staff had received 0 production permit renewal requests 
(ARPs) since October 1, 2023. 
 
Regarding Permit Processing for FY2024. 
 
On March 8, 2024, Mr. Andruss, Dr. Uddameri, Mr. Frankson, and Mr. Kubeka met 
as part of the efforts of the District to reach a settlement between the parties of the 
contested case related to the waiver amendment request submitted by Bower and 
Saha Aquaculture related to waiver WV-20191219-01.  As of April 8, 2024, a 
settlement had not been agreed to by the parties. 
    
On April 2, 2024, Mr. Brzozowski with Lavaca-Navidad River Authority notified the 
District that the Authority had altered their approach to the dam safety issue and 
are working towards implementing a remediation project instead of the mitigating 
the issue using relief wells and/or a deep horizontal filter and would no longer need 
to seek a related production permit. 
    
On April 10, 2024, the District notified Mr. Hajovsky of its intent to contest 
permitting request case PRC-20231012-01.   Under permitting request case PRC-
20231012-01, Mr. Hajovsky seeks a wavier of the rules of the district and an 
amendment to production permit VPW-20161215-01 associated with 
grandfathered well GW-00348 to authorize the production of groundwater 
permitted under historic use validation permit VPW-20161215-01 (1,007.51 acre-
feet per year) from grandfathered well GW-00348 and non-grandfathered well NW-
00751.  Unless instructed to do otherwise, staff will prepare for the consideration 
of the waiver request and permit hearing for the meeting of the board scheduled 
for July 18, 2024. 
    
As of April 10, 2024, staff had initiated 5 permitting request case (PRCs) since 
October 1, 2023: 
    
As of April 10, 2024, staff had 17 permitting request case pending: 

 
    

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 87 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 3 of 19 

As of April 12, 2024, staff had 146 active or approved production permits recorded 
in the permitting database with a combined amount of authorized groundwater 
production per year of 167,059 acre-feet. 
 
Regarding Groundwater Production Report Processing for CY2023. 
 
As of April 10, 2024, staff had processed 193 groundwater production reports for 
the preceding calendar year since October 1, 2023.  
    
As of April 10, 2024, staff had recorded groundwater production reports for 193 
water wells reporting 23,979.6 acre-feet of groundwater production during 
CY2023.  (TWDB estimated the volume of groundwater produced for rural 
domestic, livestock, mining, and rig supply exempt uses in Jackson County in Year 
2020 was 1,581 acre-feet.  See: TWDB - Projected Exempt Groundwater Use 
Estimates.). 
 
Regarding Manage Investigations related to Permitting Violations for 
FY2024. 
 
As of April 10, 2024, staff had initiated 2 investigations related to groundwater 
management (i.e., permitting) since October 1, 2023:  
    
As of April 10, 2024, staff had 7 active investigations related to groundwater 
management (i.e., permitting): 
 
Regarding Manage Enforcement Cases related to Permitting Violations for 
FY2024. 
 
As of April 10, 2024, the Board had initiated 2 enforcement case violations related 
to groundwater management (i.e., permitting) since October 1, 2023:  
    
As of April 20, 2024, staff had 0 unresolved enforcement cases related to 
groundwater management (i.e., permitting). 
 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
3.1 – Investigation – INV-20231109.0856 – Failure to Report Groundwater 
Production 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained as of April 10, 2024, the District has 
identified 15 wells under investigation INV-20231109.0856 - Failure to Satisfy 
Rules of the District - Production Reporting for CY2023 - Active that have 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 88 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 4 of 19 

potentially violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-
EXEMPTUSE WELLS by failing to report the volume of groundwater produced 
from the non-exempt-use well for the previous calendar year (January 1 to 
December 31) during January of the current calendar year. 
    
On November 9, 2023, the general manager initiated the investigation. 
    
On April 10, 2024, the general manager developed a list of wells and ownership 
information related to well that appear to currently have not satisfied the 
requirement to report groundwater production for CY2023. 
 
Based on a review of recorded violations, staff have classified the potential 
violators based on appraisal district information (i.e., landowner names) into the 
following groups based the provisions of RULE 11.10: PENALTIES of the Rules of 
the District: 
 Group 1: Persons with one violation and no previous violations: 

1. the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well Owner: 
Donald Lewis Leach Jr., JCAD Landowner: Terranona Properties 
LP) of well(s) GW-00453 and GW-00544. 

 Group: 2: Persons with previous violation of the related rule in the 
previous 5-year period: 

1. the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well Owner: 
Alice Combs, JCAD Landowner: Alice M. Combs) of well(s) GW-
00357, GW-00359, GW-00360, GW-00361 and GW-00363.(See: 
ECV-20230421-07, ECV-20230421-08, ECV-20210712-11, ECV-
20210712-13, ECV-20210712-14, ECV-20210712-15, ECV-
20210712-17.) 
2. the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well Owner: 
Mauritz S. Rogers, JCAD Landowner: Mauritz S. Rogers & Wilson B. 
& John S.) of well GW-00358. (See: ECV-20230421-05.) 
3. the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well Owner: 
Elizabeth C. Rogers, JCAD Landowner: Elizabeth Rogers) of well(s) 
GW-00362 and GW-00378. (See: ECV-20230421-06.) 
4. the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well Owner: 
Todish Farms LLC., JCAD Landowner: Todish Crystal Jansky) of 
well NW-00243.  (See: ECV-20210712-39.) 
5. the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered Well Owner: 
TRI-COUNTY POINT, JCAD Landowner: TRI-COUNTY POINT) of 
well(s) GW-00418, GW-00419, GW-00420, and GW-00421. (See: 
ECV-20210712-27, ECV-20210712-28, ECV-20210712-29, and 
ECV-20210712-30.) 

 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 89 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 5 of 19 

If the boards find that violations have occurred in the instances identified above 
and instruct staff to proceed with enforcement efforts, staff will: 

a) mail 1st notice of violation and any approved settlement offer to the 
landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel by CMRRR and 
to the registered well owner by regular mail by May 1, 2024; 
b) mail the 2nd notice of violation and any approved settlement offer to 
the landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel by CMRRR 
and to the registered well owner by regular mail by June 1, 2024,  
c) mail the notice of need to file suit and any approved settlement offer 
to the landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel by CMRRR 
and to the registered well owner by regular mail by June 30, 2024,  
d) publish an enforcement hearing notice for any unresolved violations 
for the July 20, 2024 board meeting by July 6, 2024, and  
e) present any unresolved violations to the board at the July 20, 2024 
meeting with a recommendation that board: 1) confirm the findings of 
violation and penalties and 2) referred to the violations to legal counsel for 
filing suit before the meeting scheduled for October 19, 2024. 

 
Board Action: Mr. Boone moved to: 
 
Group 1: Persons with one violation and no previous violations. 

move to: 
1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered 
Well Owner: Donald Lewis Leach Jr.; JCAD Landowner: Terranona 
Properties LP) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT 
RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the 
District related to well GW-00453 and GW-00544 unless evidence to 
the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is 
submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case 
regarding the violation;  
3. set a $100.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule 
Enforcement of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if Registered Well Owner: Donald Lewis 
Leach Jr. (JCAD Landowner: Terranona Properties LP) consents to 
the following conditions: 
 a. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 b. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

c. submits a administratively complete groundwater 
production report for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

Management Recommendation for Group 2:  Persons with a previous 
violation of the related rule in the previous 5-year period. 

move to: 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 90 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 6 of 19 

1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023,  (Registered 
Well Owner: Alice Combs; JCAD Landowner: Alice M. Combs) 
violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT RELATED TO 
NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the District related to well 
GW-00357, GW-00359,  GW-00360, GW-00363 and GW-00361 
unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating 
circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case 
regarding the violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule 
Enforcement of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if Registered Well Owner: Alice Combs 
(JCAD Landowner: Alice M. Combs) consents to the following 
conditions: 
 a. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 b. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

c. submits a administratively complete groundwater 
production report for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

move to: 
1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered 
Well Owner: Mauritz S. Rogers; JCAD Landowner: Mauritz S. 
Rogers & Wilson B. & John S.) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING 
REQUIREMENT RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the 
Rules of the District related to well GW-00358 unless evidence to the 
contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is 
submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case 
regarding the violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule 
Enforcement of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if Registered Well Owner: Mauritz S. 
Rogers (JCAD Landowner: Mauritz S. Rogers & Wilson B. & John 
S.) consents to the following conditions: 
 a. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 b. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

c. submits a administratively complete groundwater 
production report for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

move to: 
1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered 
Well Owner: Elizabeth C. Rogers; JCAD Landowner: Elizabeth 
Rogers) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT 
RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the 
District related to well GW-00362 and GW-00378 unless evidence to 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 91 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 7 of 19 

the contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is 
submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case 
regarding the violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule 
Enforcement of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if Registered Well Owner: Elizabeth C. 
Rogers (JCAD Landowner: Elizabeth Rogers) consents to the 
following conditions: 
 a. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 b. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

c. submits a administratively complete groundwater 
production report for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

move to: 
1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered 
Well Owner: Todish Farms LLC.; JCAD Landowner: Todish Crystal 
Jansky) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT 
RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the 
District related to well NW-00243 unless evidence to the contrary or 
evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to the 
District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case 
regarding the violation;  
3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule 
Enforcement of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if Registered Well Owner: Todish Farms 
LLC. (JCAD Landowner: Todish Crystal Jansky) consents to the 
following conditions: 
 a. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 b. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

c. submits a administratively complete groundwater 
production report for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

move to: 
1. find that the well owner as of December 31, 2023, (Registered 
Well Owner: TRI-COUNTY POINT; JCAD Landowner: TRI-COUNTY 
POINT) violated RULE 2.6: REPORTING REQUIREMENT 
RELATED TO NON-EXEMPTUSE WELLS of the Rules of the 
District related to well GW-00418, GW-00419, GW-00420, and GW-
00421 unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant 
extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case 
regarding the violation;  

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 92 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 8 of 19 

3. set a $250.00 penalty for the violation per RULE 9.6: Rule 
Enforcement of the Rules of the District; and 
4. offer to settle the violation if Registered Well Owner: TRI-COUNTY 
POINT (JCAD Landowner: TRI-COUNTY POINT)) consents to the 
following conditions: 
 a. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 b. pays a settlement fee of $20.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

c. submits a administratively complete groundwater 
production report for calendar year 2023 by June 30, 2024. 

 
 Mr. Gendke seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
3.2 – Investigation INV-20221012.1423 – Failure to Obtain Production Permits 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained on October 12, 2022, staff initiated 
an investigation to gather information regarding active utilities within Jackson 
County that obtain water from groundwater-based public water systems that do not 
have valid groundwater production permits issued by the District.  See: INV-
20221012.1423 - Failure to Obtain Production Permit - Active. 
    
The relevant provisions of the rules of the district associated with the investigations 
are: 

- Item 2 of RULE 4.9: PRODUCTION RELATED VIOLATIONS of the Rules 
of the District states "[a] person violates these rules by producing any 
amount of groundwater for non-exempt uses from a well, well field, or well 
system without a valid production permit issued by the Board." 

    
As of October 12, 2023, staff had an open investigation related to groundwater 
management associated with 3 entities that had not submitted administratively 
complete permitting applications.  The entities are: 

1. City of Ganado; 
2. Jackson County WCID 1 (Lolita); 
3. Tri County Point Water Systems; 

    
If the boards find that violations have occurred in the instances identified for 
Potential Failure to Obtain Production Permits and instruct staff to proceed with 
enforcement efforts, staff will: 

a) mail 1st notice of violation and any approved settlement offer to the 
landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel on which the 
subject well(s) is located by CMRRR and to the well owner by regular mail 
by November 1, 2023; 
b) mail the 2nd notice of violation and any approved settlement offer to 
the landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel on which the 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 93 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 9 of 19 

subject well(s) is located by CMRRR and to the well owner by regular mail 
by December 1, 2023,  
c) mail the notice of need to file suit and any approved settlement offer 
to the landowner associated with the appraisal district tax parcel on which 
the subject well(s) is located by CMRRR and to the well owner by regular 
mail by January 1, 2024,  
d) publish an enforcement hearing notice for any unresolved violations 
for the January 18, 2024 board meeting by January 3, 2024, and  
e) present any unresolved violations to the board at the January 18, 
2024 meeting with a recommendation that board: 1) confirm the findings of 
violation and penalties and 2) referred to the violations to legal counsel for 
filing suit before the meeting scheduled for January 18, 2024. 

    
On October 12, 2023, staff of the District reviewed the TWDB website 
https://www3.twdb.texas.gov/apps/WaterServiceBoundaries and obtained the 
most recent water use survey submitted in CY2021 which evinces that associated 
entity is violating the rules of the district by producing groundwater for non-exempt-
use purposes without the necessary production permit. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to: 
 
move to: 

1. find that the City of Ganado violated RULE 4.9: PRODUCTION 
RELATED VIOLATIONS of the Rules of the District related to water well(s) 
owned by the City of Ganado used to produce groundwater for public water 
system uses unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of relevant 
extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $0.00 penalty to be paid by the City of Ganado for each violation 
per per Rule 11.10: Penalties of the Rules of the District as restricted under 
Section 36.102(e) of the Texas Water Code; and 
4. offer to settle the violation without payment of the penalties if the City of 
Ganado consents to the following conditions: 

  1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
  2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete production permit application 
to the District by June 30, 2024. 

move to: 
1. find that the Jackson County WCID 1 violated RULE 4.9: PRODUCTION 
RELATED VIOLATIONS of the Rules of the District related to water well(s) 
owned by the Jackson County WCID 1 used to produce groundwater for 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 94 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 10 of 19 

public water system uses unless evidence to the contrary or evidence of 
relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $0.00 penalty to be paid by the Jackson County WCID 1 for each 
violation per Rule 11.10: Penalties of the Rules of the District as restricted 
under Section 36.102(e) of the Texas Water Code; and 
4. offer to settle the violation without payment of the penalties if the Jackson 
County WCID 1 consents to the following conditions: 
 1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete production permit application 
to the District by June 30, 2024. 

move to: 
1. find that the Tri County Point Water Systems violated RULE 4.9: 
PRODUCTION RELATED VIOLATIONS of the Rules of the District related 
to water well(s) owned by the Tri County Point Water Systems used to 
produce groundwater for public water system uses unless evidence to the 
contrary or evidence of relevant extenuating circumstances is submitted to 
the District; 
2. authorize the General Manager to initiate an enforcement case regarding 
the violation;  
3. set a $0.00 penalty to be paid by the Tri County Point Water Systems for 
each violation per Rule 11.10: Penalties of the Rules of the District as 
restricted under Section 36.102(e) of the Texas Water Code; and 
4. offer to settle the violation without payment of the penalties if the Tri 
County Point Water Systems consents to the following conditions: 
 1. acknowledges the violation by June 30, 2024;  
 2. pays a settlement fee of $0.00 by June 30, 2024; and  

3. submits a administratively complete production permit application 
to the District by June 30, 2024. 

 
Mr. Gendke seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 
 

Agenda Item 4: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater protection including complaints, investigations, violations, and 
enforcement cases related to groundwater contamination and waste. 
 
 4.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Protection 
 

Meeting Discussion:  Mr. Andruss offered the following report:  
 
Regarding Well Inspections for FY2024. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 95 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 11 of 19 

 
As of April 11, 2024, staff had recorded 11 well inspection forms (WIFs) since 
October 1, 2023: 
 
Regarding Manage Investigations related to Groundwater Protection for 
FY2024. 
 
As of April 11, 2024, staff had initiated 0 investigations related to Groundwater 
Protection since October 1, 2023: 
   
As of April 11, 2024, staff had 1 active investigation related to Groundwater 
Protection: 
 
Regarding Manage Enforcement Cases related to Groundwater Protection 
for FY2024. 
 
As of April 8, 2024, the Board had initiated 0 enforcement cases related to 
Groundwater Protection since October 1, 2023: 
 
As of April 8, 2024, staff had 0 unresolved enforcement case violations related to 
Groundwater Protection:  
 
Board Action: None. 
 

Agenda Item 5: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater monitoring. 
 
 5.1 – Report regarding Groundwater Monitoring 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss offered the following report: 
 
Regarding Monitor Drought Conditions for FY2024. 
 
As of April 11, 2024, the U.S. Drought Monitor indicates that 0% of Jackson County 
is experiencing abnormally dry or moderate drought conditions. 

 
As of April 11, 2024, drought condition information related to the district and the 
surrounding region of Texas collected from the Water Data for Texas website 
(https://www.waterdatafortexas.org/drought/ ) indicates that no portions of Jackson 
County are experiencing  drought conditions. 
 
Regarding Synoptic Aquifer Monitoring for FY2024. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 96 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 12 of 19 

As of April 11, 2024, staff had collected 54 water level measurements since 
October 1, 2023: 
 
Regarding Continuous Water Level Monitoring for FY2024. 
 
On January 18, 2024, staff provided a revised quote from Wellntel for the 
installation, configuration, and data services to monitor a single site within Jackson 
County as requested by the Board.  See: MFC-20240118-5.3 - Wellntel Service 
for Continuous Aquifer Monitoring.  Staff have suspended all efforts related to 
implementing a program to setup continuous aquifer monitoring sites within the 
District until such time as the Board provides guidance on how to proceed, if at all. 
 
Regarding Baseline Water Quality Aquifer Monitoring for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Ad-Hoc Baseline Water Quality Sampling for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Annual Water Level Assessment for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Annual Water Quality Assessment for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Monitoring Network Assessment and Improvement Project for 
FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Aquifer Monitoring for WV-20191219-01 for FY2024. 
 
 
Regarding West Ranch Monitoring for FY2024. 
 
On January 18, 2024, staff provided an update regarding recent water quality data 
gathered from a site and the potential of significant changes near West Ranch.  
See: MFC-20240118-5.2 - Monitoring Near West Ranch.  Staff have suspended 
all efforts to implement a program to renew monitoring activities near West Ranch 
until such time as the Board provides guidance on how to proceed, if at all. 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 97 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 13 of 19 

 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 6: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater conservation. 
 

6.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Conservation 
 
Meeting Discussion: None. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
6.1 – Conservation Education and Teacher Professional Development 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained a project, to be completed in June 
2024, related to conservation education and teacher professional development 
has been developed by staff as well as representatives of Victoria ISD (VISD), and 
University of Houston-Victoria (UHV).   
    
The project seeks to extend and expand the cooperative efforts between the UHV, 
VISD, and the District to promote water conservation through a project to deliver 
professional development to teachers of middle school science classes and 
teachers of high school aquatic science and environmental systems classes. This 
proposal expands the professional development activities by 1) conducting a 
workshop at the Wetland Education Center located at the INVISTA Victoria Plant 
Wetland in Victoria County and 2) including a presentation by UHV staff on the 
application of Artificial Intelligence/Machine Learning to water resource 
management.   
    
If the project is implemented, the qualifying teachers would be recruited from with 
the boundary of the financially contributing partners to participate in workshops 
held on two days in the Summer of 2024 at multiple locations within Victoria County 
(i.e., INVISTA Victoria Plant Wetland, the Clements Ranch, and UVH Campus) 
designed to 1) increase awareness, knowledge, and technical skills related to the 
hydrologic cycle, water resources, risks to water resources including over-
production and pollution, and 2) expand knowledge and skills that align with the 
related Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills (TEKS) for the purposes of 
promoting water conservation.  Participating teachers would receive a $500.00 
stipend and continuing education credits for completing the workshops.  The 
project would conclude with the submittal of a summary report of professional 
development provided during the workshops. 
    

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 98 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 14 of 19 

The total cost for the project is projected to at $17,540.  The proposal does not 
assign a cost to the valuable contributions of time to be made by Teresa LeSage-
Clements of UHV, Dmitri Sobolev of UHV, John Snyder of VISD, Tim Andruss of 
VCGCD, or the administrative staff members of the cooperating entities. 
Furthermore, the proposal does not assign a cost to the valuable contributions 
made by the UHV, the City of Victoria, the VISD, the INVISTA Victoria Plant 
Wetland, or the Clements Ranch for providing access to facilities to be used during 
the workshops. 
    
On July 21, 2023, the Victoria County GCD Board of Directors authorized staff to 
1) seek cooperation and approval of cost sharing agreements with Calhoun County 
GCD, Refugio GCD, and Texana GCD as well as 2) take the necessary actions to 
implement the Proposal for the Cooperative Promotion of Water Conservation 
through Teacher Professional Development after October 1, 2023. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to accept the Proposal for the Cooperative 
Promotion of Water Conservation through Teacher Professional Development 
Summer 2024 and agree to cost share with VCGCD in an amount not to exceed 
25% of the actual expenses or $4,385.00 for the implementation of the project. Mr. 
Gendke seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Agenda Item 7: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater resource planning including Groundwater Management Area 15 Joint 
Planning and regional water planning. 
 
 7.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Resource Planning 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss offered the following report:  
 
Regarding Regional Water Planning Participation for FY2024. 
 
Representatives of the district did not participate in the meeting of the Lavaca 
Regional Planning Group (Region P) held on February 5, 2024.  The next meeting 
of the Lavaca Regional Planning Group (Region P) is scheduled for May 6, 2024 
at 12:00 PM at the LNRA Offices. 
 
Regarding GMA 15 Joint Planning for 4th Planning Cycle in FY2024. 
 
Representatives of the district participated in the meeting of the representatives of 
Groundwater Management Area 15 on January 11, 2024 to continue joint planning 
efforts.  During the meeting the members received a report from TWDB stating that 
the internal work to compare predictive results when modeling the GMA 15 DFC 
pumping scenario using the previous GAM (CGCD-GAM) and the current GAM 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 99 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 15 of 19 

(combined GMA 15 and GMA 16 extent) resulted in significant discrepancies and 
issues.  TWDB is undertaking a review of the new model.  The representatives 
agreed to postpone action on the joint planning work until the next meeting of GMA 
15.  Staff of the district had suspended efforts to negotiate terms of an agreement 
with Intera until TWDB provides clarity regarding the GAM to be used during the 
current joint planning cycle.   
    
The representatives of Groundwater Management Area 15 met on April 11, 2024 
at Goliad County GCD offices.  During the meeting, the representatives authorized 
the GMA 15 Administrator to submit a request to TWDB to authorize the use of the 
Central Gulf Coast Groundwater Availability Model (CGC-GAM) for the 4th Cycle 
of Joint Planning and evaluate the use of the "LRE Modification" to the CGC-GAM 
for the 4th Cycle of Joint Planning. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 8: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
groundwater policy including the Management Plan of the District and the Rules of 
the District. 
 
 8.0 – Report regarding Groundwater Policy 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss offered the following report: 
 
Regarding Management Plan Revisions for FY2024. 
 
   No report. 
 
Regarding Rule Amendments for FY2024. 
 
Staff will review the passed legislation of the previous legislative session, 
coordinate with legal counsel to develop proposed rule revisions, and post the 
required rulemaking hearing notice for the meeting scheduled for July 18, 2023. 
 
Regarding Legislative Support and Lobbying for FY2024. 
 
On March 20, 2024, Mr. Andruss participated in a meeting of the Legislative 
Committee the Texas Water Conservation Association in Austin.  The committee 
heard presentations regarding issues that members would like for the committee 
to consider as part of its efforts to identify "consensus legislation" including the 
following topics: 
 Infrastructure and Funding: 
 Regionalization and Growth: 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 100 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 16 of 19 

 Surface Water: 
 Groundwater: 
 Data: 
 Other: 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 9: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to 
administration and management including the minutes of previous meetings, the 
annual budget of the district, bank accounts, investments, financial reports of the 
district, bills and invoices of the district, management goals and objectives of the 
district, administrative policies, staffing, consultant agreements, interlocal 
cooperation agreements, and support services provided to and from other 
groundwater conservation districts.  
 
 9.0 – Report regarding Administration and Management 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss offered the following report: 
 
Regarding Financial Audit for FY2023. 
 
On March 22, 2024, Mr. Cox with Goldman, Hunt and Notz, LLP informed the 
District that he anticipates presenting the audit report to the Board on July 15, 
2024. 
 
Regarding Budget Development for FY2025. 
 
Staff will develop and present preliminary budget information to the Board on July 
18, 2024. 
 
Regarding Website Improvements. 
 
Staff have added webpages and electronic forms related to groundwater water 
production reporting, and renewal of groundwater production permits to the 
website of the district. 
 
Regarding Public Notice and Meeting Coordination for FY2024. 
 
The next meetings of the Board are scheduled for July 18, 2024, August 15, 2024 
(Budget and Tax Rate Matters), and October 17, 2024, with each meeting to 
convene at 6:00 PM. Regular meetings will be rescheduled as necessary and 
special meeting may be scheduled to address unforeseen issues. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 101 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 17 of 19 

Regarding Performance Audit for FY2023. 
 
Staff will develop and present the performance audit for FY2023 to the Board on 
July 18, 2024. 

 
Board Action: None. 

 
9.1 – Minutes of the Previous Meetings 

 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the minutes for the previous meeting 
were sent the board members prior to the meeting. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Gendke moved to accept and approve the meeting minutes for 
January 18, 2024, as drafted. Mr. Tupa seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
9.2 – Financial Reports of the District 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the internal financial reports of the 
District for December 2023, January and February 2024, have been sent to the 
directors prior to the meeting. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to accept and approve the financial reports for 
December 2023, January and February 2024. Mr. Tupa seconded the motion. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 
9.2.1 – Financial Transaction Review 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained that there have been 20 accounts 
payable and 16 accounts receivable transactions since January 15, 2024, as of 
April 11, 2024. 
 
Board Action: None. 
 
9.3 – Investments of the District. 
 
Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the investment reports for January 
and February 2024, have been sent to the board prior to the meeting. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Gendke moved to accept the investment reports for January 
and February 2024. Mr. Tupa seconded the motion. The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 102 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 18 of 19 

 9.4 – Unpaid Accounts Payable 
 

Meeting Discussion: Mr. Andruss explained the District has outstanding accounts 
payable invoices that are not considered regular and routine for which the District 
has received the goods and services billed for under the invoices. 
 
Board Action: Mr. Born moved to authorize the general manager to pay the 
following items: 

1. ACCTP-20240208-02 - $1,965.00 – ABM 
2. ACCTP-20240313-01 - $270.00 – ABM 
3. ACCTP-20240418-01 - $2,922.00 – ABM 
4. ACCTP-20240418-02 - $1,025.76 – VCGCD 

 
Mr. Boone seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Agenda Item 10: Consideration of and possible action on matters related to legal 
counsel report. 
 
 10.0 – Legal Counsel Report 
 

Meeting Discussion: None. 
 
Board Action: None. 

 
Agenda Item 11: Adjourn 
 
 11.0 – Adjourn Meeting 
  
 Meeting Discussion: None. 
 

Board Action: Mr. Tupa moved to adjourn the meeting after concluding all 
business of the District, at approximately 7:59 PM. Mr. Gendke seconded the 
motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 
The above and foregoing minutes were read and approved on this the ________ day of 

__________________________, _______. 

 
ATTEST: 
 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 103 of 178



Texana Groundwater Conservation District 
411 N. Wells, Room 118, Edna, Texas 77957 

P.O. Box 1098, Edna, Texas 77957 
Phone (361) 781-0624 | Fax (361) 781-0453 | www.texanagcd.org 

 
 

Meeting Minutes for April 18, 2024 | Page 19 of 19 

____________________________ _______________________________ 
District Director    District Director 

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 104 of 178



TGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control
Review Reports - ICRR-20240331-01 -
March 2024
TexanaGroundwater Conservation DistrictInternal Control Review Report

Reporting Period Start: 3/1/24
Reporting Period Stop: 3/31/24

Related Documentation
TGCD - Adm - FM - Financial Registry - FY2024 - Check Out 20240625.1358 CPD - Check In
20240625.1438 CPD
Bank Statement Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs) Note Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs) Note Links:

List of VOIDED Check Note Links:  

List of CANCELLED Transaction Note Links:

List of COLLATERAL RECORD Note Links:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs)Notes:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs)Notes:  

Internal Control Review

TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20230331-03 - CD# 0515 - RECONCILED1.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20230331-04 - CD# 0517 - RECONCILED2.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240331-01 - Prosperity 9448  - RECONCILED3.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240331-02 - Prosperity 7512 - RECONCILED4.

1.

TGCD - Adm - FM - Collateral Records - CR-20240331-01 - Prosperity Bank - March 20241.

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 105 of 178

evernote:///view/60335230/s348/b9618521-cfa3-7389-8771-5bc3f38e4506/5251c142-2bd2-4a9e-a825-e06ac42b430a/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/da6864c6-e182-db9b-01a2-84bfc91dd34d/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/ae02451e-aa40-c6e4-8e92-e46fed8a473e/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/1e8a2628-e024-07b5-ec4e-88c82fa147c6/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/d6ef98fd-c0b6-3fc0-0c64-907dadc1b6cf/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/91fa8a42-6915-eb91-d2db-b39a12b60c67/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/


Question #1:  Are bank statements and reconciliation forms consistent and balanced?
 Yes
Comments:  

Question#2:  Are dual signatures present on all checks?  Yes
Comments:

Question#3:  Are all expenditures associated with employees, including credit card
expenditures, or contractors appropriate and properly authorized?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#4:  Are all electronic transactions (drafts and transfers) appropriate and
properly documented?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#5:  Are all voided checks properly marked and recorded?  
Comments: N/A

Question#6:  Does the market valueof the pledged collateral and FDIC insurance exceed
the total of investments per banking institution?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#7:  Do the external financial recordscomport with internal financial records of
the District?  Yes
Comments:

PDF of Executed Report:

Note Template Link:   TGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control Review Reports - ICRR-YYYYMMDD-
SQ

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 106 of 178

evernote:///view/212557806/s348/eaf1dd68-19fe-4b65-ba1c-87be2a6bac4e/eaf1dd68-19fe-4b65-ba1c-87be2a6bac4e/b7446aa4-db54-42e0-8da2-b81385279985


File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Bank Account Account Statement
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
 Reported Balance 

as of the Start of the 
Fiscal Year 

Total of 
Recorded Credit 
Transactions for 

Fiscal Year

Total of 
Recorded Debit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Calculated 
Balance

Current Reported 
Balance

Unreconciled 
Amount

Prosperity 9448 Prosperity 9448 : BS-20230331-01: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20230331-01 Reserve 377,589.85$             276,587.20$       (75,000.00)$       579,177.05$       579,177.05$        -$              

Prosperity 7152 Prosperity 7152 : BS-20230331-02: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20230331-02 Operating 23,655.87$               76,634.15$         (10,928.03)$       89,361.99$         89,361.99$          -$              

CD# 0515 CD# 0515 : BS-20230331-03: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20230331-03 Reserve 254,239.74$             4,258.92$           -$                   258,498.66$       258,498.66$        -$              

CD# 0517 CD# 0517 : BS-20230331-04: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20230331-04 Reserve 254,112.67$             4,129.22$           -$                   258,241.89$       258,241.89$        -$              
Total 909,598.13$             361,609.49$       (85,928.03)$       1,185,279.59$    1,185,279.59$     -$              

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Account Reconciliation Report Page 1 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 107 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WDYL9 FNMA #AS4314 FHLB AA+ 260,066.51$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138X6MR3 FNMA CRA #AU6667 FHLB AA+ 110,683.86$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3133KYUZ0 FR #RB5100 FHLB AA+ -$                    
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DZ54 FNMA #MA4363 FHLB AA+ 453,344.05$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31417DY56 FNMA #AB7031 FHLB AA+ 87,877.90$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132D6AC4 FR #SB8103 FHLB AA+ 121,319.01$       

Total 1,283,291.33$    

The funds of the District are adquately protected by FDIC Insurance and pledged collateral.

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 2 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 108 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Budget Program Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
1001 - Administration - Revenue 283,400.00$            285,067.61$               1,667.61$               
1003 - Administration - Technology (20,300.00)$             (633.73)$                     19,666.27$             
1004 - Administration - General (164,100.00)$           (7,665.72)$                  156,434.28$           
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (9,500.00)$               -$                            9,500.00$               
3000 - Groundwater Management (5,000.00)$               (839.70)$                     4,160.30$               
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (32,600.00)$             (247.00)$                     32,353.00$             
5000 - Groundwater Policy -$                         -$                            -$                       
6000 - Groundwater Protection (8,000.00)$               -$                            8,000.00$               
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (7,500.00)$               -$                            7,500.00$               
Total 36,400.00$              275,681.46$               239,281.46$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Program Page 3 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 109 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Budget Category Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
0120 - Tax Collections 272,300.00$            270,008.77$             (2,291.23)$             
0130 - Interest Income 9,300.00$                14,928.84$               5,628.84$               
0140 - District Fees - GCD Management and Operations Cost-Sharing Fees -$                         -$                          -$                       
0143 - District Fees - Permitting 1,800.00$                -$                          (1,800.00)$             
0145 - District Fees - Enforcement -$                         -$                          -$                       
0150 - Grants -$                         -$                          -$                       
0160 - Refunds -$                         130.00$                    130.00$                  
0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees -$                         -$                          -$                       
0300 - Reserve Funds -$                         -$                          -$                       
210 - Legal Services (25,000.00)$             (1,275.00)$                23,725.00$             
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services (5,000.00)$               -$                          5,000.00$               
220 - Professional and Technical Services (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (2,500.00)$               (605.72)$                   1,894.28$               
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (7,500.00)$               (1,648.57)$                5,851.43$               
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant -$                         -$                          -$                       
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (27,500.00)$             -$                          27,500.00$             
226 - Professional and Technical Services - Laboratory (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD (92,800.00)$             -$                          92,800.00$             
230 - Insurance and Bonds (2,300.00)$               (1,747.34)$                552.66$                  
310 - Supplies - Office (4,000.00)$               (610.74)$                   3,389.26$               
311 - Supplies - Field -$                         (247.00)$                   (247.00)$                
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (2,500.00)$               (108.00)$                   2,392.00$               
325 - Fuel -$                         -$                          -$                       
330 - Training and Travel Expenses (1,500.00)$               -$                          1,500.00$               
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions -$                         -$                          -$                       
350 - Lease -$                         -$                          -$                       
360 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing -$                         -$                          -$                       
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (500.00)$                  -$                          500.00$                  
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (2,500.00)$               -$                          2,500.00$               
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (9,500.00)$               -$                          9,500.00$               
380 - Aquifer Monitoring Network Development (7,500.00)$               -$                          7,500.00$               
410 - Equipment - Office (1,000.00)$               (522.36)$                   477.64$                  
415 - Equipment - Field -$                         -$                          -$                       
420 - Technology Services - Office Productivity (2,700.00)$               -$                          2,700.00$               
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (500.00)$                  (42.64)$                     457.36$                  
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (7,000.00)$               (336.09)$                   6,663.91$               
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (800.00)$                  (172.68)$                   627.32$                  
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (3,000.00)$               (205.21)$                   2,794.79$               
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (800.00)$                  (197.85)$                   602.15$                  
436 - Technology Services - Internet (500.00)$                  (129.04)$                   370.96$                  
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (5,500.00)$               (114.44)$                   5,385.56$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Category Page 4 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 110 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Budget Category Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
500 - Public Notices and Publications (6,000.00)$               (1,159.95)$                4,840.05$               
900 - Miscellaneous (200.00)$                  (263.52)$                   (63.52)$                  
Total 34,800.00$              275,681.46$             240,881.46$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Category Page 5 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 111 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Program Sum of Split Amount
1001 - Administration - Revenue 285,067.61$               
1003 - Administration - Technology (633.73)$                    
1004 - Administration - General (7,665.72)$                 
3000 - Groundwater Management (839.70)$                    
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (247.00)$                    
(blank)
Grand Total 275,681.46$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Program Page 6 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 112 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Category Sum of Split Amount
0120 - Tax Collections 270,008.77$               
0130 - Interest Income 14,928.84$                 
0160 - Refunds 130.00$                      
210 - Legal Services (1,275.00)$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (605.72)$                    
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (1,648.57)$                 
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,747.34)$                 
310 - Supplies - Office (610.74)$                    
311 - Supplies - Field (247.00)$                    
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (108.00)$                    
410 - Equipment - Office (522.36)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (42.64)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (336.09)$                    
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (172.68)$                    
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (205.21)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (197.85)$                    
436 - Technology Services - Internet (129.04)$                    
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (114.44)$                    
500 - Public Notices and Publications (1,159.95)$                 
900 - Miscellaneous (263.52)$                    
(blank)
Grand Total 275,681.46$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Category Page 7 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 113 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
TR-20231005-01-C 2,691.91$                   

Reserve 2,691.91$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 2,691.91$                   
TR-20231024-01-D (395.04)$                    

Operating (395.04)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1003 - Administration - Technology

430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (54.67)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (191.39)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (48.50)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      

TR-20231024-02-D (1,747.34)$                 
Operating (1,747.34)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,747.34)$                 

TR-20231024-03-D (247.00)$                    
Operating (247.00)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
311 - Supplies - Field (247.00)$                    

TR-20231024-04-D (45.00)$                      
Operating (45.00)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (45.00)$                      

TR-20231031-01-C 983.96$                      
Reserve 983.96$                      

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 8 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 114 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

0130 - Interest Income 983.96$                      
TR-20231031-02-C 5.02$                          

Operating 5.02$                          
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 5.02$                          
TR-20231109-01-C 701.35$                      

Reserve 701.35$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 701.35$                      
TR-20231109-03-C 130.00$                      

Reserve 130.00$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds 130.00$                      
TR-20231120-01-C 75,000.00$                 

Operating 75,000.00$                 
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds 75,000.00$                 
TR-20231120-01-D (75,000.00)$               

Reserve (75,000.00)$               
Prosperity 9448

Debit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds (75,000.00)$               
TR-20231130-01-C 888.25$                      

Reserve 888.25$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 888.25$                      
TR-20231130-02-C 10.03$                        

Operating 10.03$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 10.03$                        

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 9 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 115 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

TR-20231201-01-C 43.21$                        
Reserve 43.21$                        

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 43.21$                        

TR-20231201-01-D (659.25)$                    
Operating (659.25)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
500 - Public Notices and Publications (659.25)$                    

TR-20231201-02-D (605.72)$                    
Operating (605.72)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (605.72)$                    

TR-20231201-03-D (358.24)$                    
Operating (358.24)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (358.24)$                    

TR-20231201-04-D (794.84)$                    
Operating (794.84)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1003 - Administration - Technology
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (74.62)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (13.82)$                      
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.77)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (156.36)$                    
900 - Miscellaneous (399.79)$                    

TR-20231208-01-C 13,845.19$                 
Reserve 13,845.19$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 10 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 116 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

0120 - Tax Collections 13,845.19$                 
TR-20231211-01-C 27,052.54$                 

Reserve 27,052.54$                 
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 27,052.54$                 
TR-20231219-01-C 6,691.23$                   

Reserve 6,691.23$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 6,691.23$                   
TR-20231231-01-C 883.22$                      

Reserve 883.22$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 883.22$                      
TR-20231231-02-C 20.00$                        

Operating 20.00$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 20.00$                        
TR-20231231-03-C 2,123.42$                   

Reserve 2,123.42$                   
CD# 0515

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,123.42$                   
TR-20231231-04-C 2,059.01$                   

Reserve 2,059.01$                   
CD# 0517

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,059.01$                   
TR-20240106-01-C 7,848.65$                   

Reserve 7,848.65$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 7,848.65$                   

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 11 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 117 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

TR-20240108-01-C 4,722.22$                   
Reserve 4,722.22$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 4,722.22$                   

TR-20240111-01-C 17,572.47$                 
Reserve 17,572.47$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 17,572.47$                 

TR-20240118-01-C 6,774.31$                   
Reserve 6,774.31$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 6,774.31$                   

TR-20240118-01-D (1,648.57)$                 
Operating (1,648.57)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (1,648.57)$                 

TR-20240118-02-D (74.12)$                      
Operating (74.12)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (74.12)$                      

TR-20240118-03-D (21.00)$                      
Operating (21.00)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
500 - Public Notices and Publications (21.00)$                      

TR-20240118-04-D (1,275.00)$                 
Operating (1,275.00)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
210 - Legal Services (915.00)$                    

3000 - Groundwater Management

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 12 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 118 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

210 - Legal Services (360.00)$                    
TR-20240118-05-D (45.00)$                      

Operating (45.00)$                      
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

410 - Equipment - Office (45.00)$                      
TR-20240118-06-D (826.60)$                    

Operating (826.60)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

310 - Supplies - Office (197.52)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (74.62)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.77)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous (404.21)$                    

TR-20240125-01-C 5,895.41$                   
Reserve 5,895.41$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 5,895.41$                   

TR-20240130-01-C 46,491.33$                 
Reserve 46,491.33$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 46,491.33$                 

TR-20240131-01-C 1,000.16$                   
Reserve 1,000.16$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,000.16$                   

TR-20240131-02-C 19.79$                        
Operating 19.79$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 19.79$                        

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 13 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 119 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

TR-20240206-01-C 7,266.36$                   
Reserve 7,266.36$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 7,266.36$                   

TR-20240215-01-C 44,554.78$                 
Reserve 44,554.78$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 44,554.78$                 

TR-20240222-01-C 73,119.45$                 
Reserve 73,119.45$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 73,119.45$                 

TR-20240228-01-D (49.29)$                      
Operating (49.29)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (256.86)$                    
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (108.00)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (132.18)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.81)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous 540.48$                      

TR-20240229-01-C 1,202.46$                   
Reserve 1,202.46$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,202.46$                   

TR-20240229-02-C 18.18$                        
Operating 18.18$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 18.18$                        

TR-20240305-01-C 4,738.36$                   

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 14 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 120 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

Reserve 4,738.36$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 4,738.36$                   
TR-20240314-08-D (479.70)$                    

Operating (479.70)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
3000 - Groundwater Management

500 - Public Notices and Publications (479.70)$                    
TR-20240315-09-D (114.44)$                    

Operating (114.44)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (114.44)$                    
TR-20240325-01-C 1,541.88$                   

Operating 1,541.88$                   
Prosperity 7152

Credit
3000 - Groundwater Management

900 - Miscellaneous 1,541.88$                   
TR-20240328-01-D (1,541.88)$                 

Operating (1,541.88)$                 
Prosperity 7152

Debit
3000 - Groundwater Management

900 - Miscellaneous (1,541.88)$                 
TR-20240331-01-C 1,490.38$                   

Reserve 1,490.38$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 1,490.38$                   
TR-20240331-02-C 19.25$                        

Operating 19.25$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 19.25$                        
TR-20240331-03-C 2,135.50$                   

Reserve 2,135.50$                   

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 15 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 121 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:34 PM

CD# 0515
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 2,135.50$                   

TR-20240331-04-C 2,070.21$                   
Reserve 2,070.21$                   

CD# 0517
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 2,070.21$                   

(blank)
(blank)

(blank)
(blank)

(blank)
(blank)

Grand Total 275,681.46$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 16 of 16TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 122 of 178



TGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control
Review Reports - ICRR-20240430-01 -
April 2024
TexanaGroundwater Conservation DistrictInternal Control Review Report

Reporting Period Start: 4/1/24
Reporting Period Stop: 4/30/24

Related Documentation
TGCD - Adm - FM - Financial Registry - FY2024 - Check Out 20240625.1441 CPD - Check In
20240625.1500 CPD
Bank Statement Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs) Note Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs) Note Links:

List of VOIDED Check Note Links:  

List of CANCELLED Transaction Note Links:

List of COLLATERAL RECORD Note Links:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs)Notes:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs)Notes:  

Internal Control Review

TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240430-01 - Prosperity 9448  - RECONCILED1.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240430-02 - Prosperity 7512 - RECONCILED2.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240331-04 - CD# 0517 - RECONCILED3.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240331-03 - CD# 0515 - RECONCILED4.

1.

TGCD - Adm - FM - Collateral Records - CR-20240430-01 - Prosperity Bank - April 20241.

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 123 of 178

evernote:///view/60335230/s348/b3521c19-9872-7459-9f9e-99598ef369b0/5251c142-2bd2-4a9e-a825-e06ac42b430a/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/46411da3-3a7e-dc9f-9f79-f00be340d697/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/f76a6d20-b4ac-dba7-69ea-3c507112d9d7/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/ae02451e-aa40-c6e4-8e92-e46fed8a473e/d9bfdcf3-0ae6-435d-a7e4-7e6d71ce04a0/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/da6864c6-e182-db9b-01a2-84bfc91dd34d/d9bfdcf3-0ae6-435d-a7e4-7e6d71ce04a0/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/9651140b-ffcd-0676-75c2-db988ea1fb3f/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/


Question #1:  Are bank statements and reconciliation forms consistent and balanced?
 Yes
Comments:  

Question#2:  Are dual signatures present on all checks?  Yes
Comments:

Question#3:  Are all expenditures associated with employees, including credit card
expenditures, or contractors appropriate and properly authorized?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#4:  Are all electronic transactions (drafts and transfers) appropriate and
properly documented?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#5:  Are all voided checks properly marked and recorded?  
Comments: N/A

Question#6:  Does the market valueof the pledged collateral and FDIC insurance exceed
the total of investments per banking institution?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#7:  Do the external financial recordscomport with internal financial records of
the District?  Yes
Comments:

PDF of Executed Report:

Note Template Link:   TGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control Review Reports - ICRR-YYYYMMDD-
SQ

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 124 of 178

evernote:///view/212557806/s348/eaf1dd68-19fe-4b65-ba1c-87be2a6bac4e/eaf1dd68-19fe-4b65-ba1c-87be2a6bac4e/b7446aa4-db54-42e0-8da2-b81385279985


File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Bank Account Account Statement
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
 Reported Balance 

as of the Start of the 
Fiscal Year 

Total of 
Recorded Credit 
Transactions for 

Fiscal Year

Total of 
Recorded Debit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Calculated 
Balance

Current Reported 
Balance

Unreconciled 
Amount

Prosperity 9448 Prosperity 9448 : BS-20240430-01: DATE: 04/30/2024 BS-20240430-01 Reserve 377,589.85$             280,957.30$       (75,000.00)$       583,547.15$       583,547.15$        -$              

Prosperity 7152 Prosperity 7152 : BS-20240430-02: DATE: 04/30/2024 BS-20240430-02 Operating 23,655.87$               76,963.91$         (12,252.78)$       88,367.00$         88,367.00$          -$              

CD# 0515 CD# 0515 : BS-20240331-03: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20240331-03 Reserve 254,239.74$             4,258.92$           -$                   258,498.66$       258,498.66$        -$              

CD# 0517 CD# 0517 : BS-20240331-04: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20240331-04 Reserve 254,112.67$             4,129.22$           -$                   258,241.89$       258,241.89$        -$              
Total 909,598.13$             366,309.35$       (87,252.78)$       1,188,654.70$    1,188,654.70$     -$              

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Account Reconciliation Report Page 1 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 125 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WDYL9 FNMA #AS4314 FHLB AA+ 249,282.17$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138X6MR3 FNMA CRA #AU6667 FHLB AA+ 94,303.13$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3133KYUZ0 FR #RB5100 FHLB AA+ -$                    
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DZ54 FNMA #MA4363 FHLB AA+ 435,428.66$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31417DY56 FNMA #AB7031 FHLB AA+ 84,194.32$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132D6AC4 FR #SB8103 FHLB AA+ 117,829.84$       

Total 1,231,038.12$    

The funds of the District are adquately protected by FDIC Insurance and pledged collateral.

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 2 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 126 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Budget Program Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
1001 - Administration - Revenue 283,400.00$            288,225.59$               4,825.59$               
1003 - Administration - Technology (20,300.00)$             (633.73)$                     19,666.27$             
1004 - Administration - General (164,100.00)$           (8,990.47)$                  155,109.53$           
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (9,500.00)$               -$                            9,500.00$               
3000 - Groundwater Management (5,000.00)$               702.18$                      5,702.18$               
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (32,600.00)$             (247.00)$                     32,353.00$             
5000 - Groundwater Policy -$                         -$                            -$                       
6000 - Groundwater Protection (8,000.00)$               -$                            8,000.00$               
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (7,500.00)$               -$                            7,500.00$               
Total 36,400.00$              279,056.57$               242,656.57$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Program Page 3 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 127 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Budget Category Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
0120 - Tax Collections 272,300.00$            271,698.21$             (601.79)$                
0130 - Interest Income 9,300.00$                16,397.38$               7,097.38$               
0140 - District Fees - GCD Management and Operations Cost-Sharing Fees -$                         -$                          -$                       
0143 - District Fees - Permitting 1,800.00$                -$                          (1,800.00)$             
0145 - District Fees - Enforcement -$                         -$                          -$                       
0150 - Grants -$                         -$                          -$                       
0160 - Refunds -$                         130.00$                    130.00$                  
0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees -$                         -$                          -$                       
0300 - Reserve Funds -$                         -$                          -$                       
210 - Legal Services (25,000.00)$             (1,275.00)$                23,725.00$             
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services (5,000.00)$               -$                          5,000.00$               
220 - Professional and Technical Services (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (2,500.00)$               (605.72)$                   1,894.28$               
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (7,500.00)$               (1,648.57)$                5,851.43$               
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant -$                         -$                          -$                       
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (27,500.00)$             -$                          27,500.00$             
226 - Professional and Technical Services - Laboratory (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD (92,800.00)$             -$                          92,800.00$             
230 - Insurance and Bonds (2,300.00)$               (1,747.34)$                552.66$                  
310 - Supplies - Office (4,000.00)$               (610.74)$                   3,389.26$               
311 - Supplies - Field -$                         (247.00)$                   (247.00)$                
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (2,500.00)$               (108.00)$                   2,392.00$               
325 - Fuel -$                         -$                          -$                       
330 - Training and Travel Expenses (1,500.00)$               -$                          1,500.00$               
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions -$                         -$                          -$                       
350 - Lease -$                         -$                          -$                       
360 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing -$                         -$                          -$                       
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (500.00)$                  -$                          500.00$                  
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (2,500.00)$               -$                          2,500.00$               
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (9,500.00)$               -$                          9,500.00$               
380 - Aquifer Monitoring Network Development (7,500.00)$               -$                          7,500.00$               
410 - Equipment - Office (1,000.00)$               (522.36)$                   477.64$                  
415 - Equipment - Field -$                         -$                          -$                       
420 - Technology Services - Office Productivity (2,700.00)$               -$                          2,700.00$               
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (500.00)$                  (424.82)$                   75.18$                    
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (7,000.00)$               (468.27)$                   6,531.73$               
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (800.00)$                  (172.68)$                   627.32$                  
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (3,000.00)$               (528.34)$                   2,471.66$               
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (800.00)$                  (247.66)$                   552.34$                  
436 - Technology Services - Internet (500.00)$                  (161.30)$                   338.70$                  
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (5,500.00)$               (466.64)$                   5,033.36$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Category Page 4 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 128 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Budget Category Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
500 - Public Notices and Publications (6,000.00)$               (1,159.95)$                4,840.05$               
900 - Miscellaneous (200.00)$                  1,225.37$                 1,425.37$               
Total 34,800.00$              279,056.57$             244,256.57$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Category Page 5 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 129 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Program Sum of Split Amount
1001 - Administration - Revenue 288,225.59$               
1003 - Administration - Technology (633.73)$                    
1004 - Administration - General (8,990.47)$                 
3000 - Groundwater Management 702.18$                      
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (247.00)$                    
(blank)
Grand Total 279,056.57$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Program Page 6 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 130 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Category Sum of Split Amount
0120 - Tax Collections 271,698.21$               
0130 - Interest Income 16,397.38$                 
0160 - Refunds 130.00$                      
210 - Legal Services (1,275.00)$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (605.72)$                    
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (1,648.57)$                 
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,747.34)$                 
310 - Supplies - Office (610.74)$                    
311 - Supplies - Field (247.00)$                    
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (108.00)$                    
410 - Equipment - Office (522.36)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (424.82)$                    
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (468.27)$                    
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (172.68)$                    
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (528.34)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (247.66)$                    
436 - Technology Services - Internet (161.30)$                    
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (466.64)$                    
500 - Public Notices and Publications (1,159.95)$                 
900 - Miscellaneous 1,225.37$                   
(blank)
Grand Total 279,056.57$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Category Page 7 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 131 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
TR-20231005-01-C 2,691.91$                   

Reserve 2,691.91$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 2,691.91$                   
TR-20231024-01-D (395.04)$                    

Operating (395.04)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1003 - Administration - Technology

430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (54.67)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (191.39)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (48.50)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      

TR-20231024-02-D (1,747.34)$                 
Operating (1,747.34)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,747.34)$                 

TR-20231024-03-D (247.00)$                    
Operating (247.00)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
311 - Supplies - Field (247.00)$                    

TR-20231024-04-D (45.00)$                      
Operating (45.00)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (45.00)$                      

TR-20231031-01-C 983.96$                      
Reserve 983.96$                      

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 8 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 132 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

0130 - Interest Income 983.96$                      
TR-20231031-02-C 5.02$                          

Operating 5.02$                          
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 5.02$                          
TR-20231109-01-C 701.35$                      

Reserve 701.35$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 701.35$                      
TR-20231109-03-C 130.00$                      

Reserve 130.00$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds 130.00$                      
TR-20231120-01-C 75,000.00$                 

Operating 75,000.00$                 
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds 75,000.00$                 
TR-20231120-01-D (75,000.00)$               

Reserve (75,000.00)$               
Prosperity 9448

Debit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds (75,000.00)$               
TR-20231130-01-C 888.25$                      

Reserve 888.25$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 888.25$                      
TR-20231130-02-C 10.03$                        

Operating 10.03$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 10.03$                        

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 9 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 133 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

TR-20231201-01-C 43.21$                        
Reserve 43.21$                        

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 43.21$                        

TR-20231201-01-D (659.25)$                    
Operating (659.25)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
500 - Public Notices and Publications (659.25)$                    

TR-20231201-02-D (605.72)$                    
Operating (605.72)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (605.72)$                    

TR-20231201-03-D (358.24)$                    
Operating (358.24)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (358.24)$                    

TR-20231201-04-D (794.84)$                    
Operating (794.84)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1003 - Administration - Technology
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (74.62)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (13.82)$                      
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.77)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (156.36)$                    
900 - Miscellaneous (399.79)$                    

TR-20231208-01-C 13,845.19$                 
Reserve 13,845.19$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 10 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 134 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

0120 - Tax Collections 13,845.19$                 
TR-20231211-01-C 27,052.54$                 

Reserve 27,052.54$                 
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 27,052.54$                 
TR-20231219-01-C 6,691.23$                   

Reserve 6,691.23$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 6,691.23$                   
TR-20231231-01-C 883.22$                      

Reserve 883.22$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 883.22$                      
TR-20231231-02-C 20.00$                        

Operating 20.00$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 20.00$                        
TR-20231231-03-C 2,123.42$                   

Reserve 2,123.42$                   
CD# 0515

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,123.42$                   
TR-20231231-04-C 2,059.01$                   

Reserve 2,059.01$                   
CD# 0517

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,059.01$                   
TR-20240106-01-C 7,848.65$                   

Reserve 7,848.65$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 7,848.65$                   

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 11 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 135 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

TR-20240108-01-C 4,722.22$                   
Reserve 4,722.22$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 4,722.22$                   

TR-20240111-01-C 17,572.47$                 
Reserve 17,572.47$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 17,572.47$                 

TR-20240118-01-C 6,774.31$                   
Reserve 6,774.31$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 6,774.31$                   

TR-20240118-01-D (1,648.57)$                 
Operating (1,648.57)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (1,648.57)$                 

TR-20240118-02-D (74.12)$                      
Operating (74.12)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (74.12)$                      

TR-20240118-03-D (21.00)$                      
Operating (21.00)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
500 - Public Notices and Publications (21.00)$                      

TR-20240118-04-D (1,275.00)$                 
Operating (1,275.00)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
210 - Legal Services (915.00)$                    

3000 - Groundwater Management

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 12 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 136 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

210 - Legal Services (360.00)$                    
TR-20240118-05-D (45.00)$                      

Operating (45.00)$                      
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

410 - Equipment - Office (45.00)$                      
TR-20240118-06-D (826.60)$                    

Operating (826.60)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

310 - Supplies - Office (197.52)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (74.62)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.77)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous (404.21)$                    

TR-20240125-01-C 5,895.41$                   
Reserve 5,895.41$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 5,895.41$                   

TR-20240130-01-C 46,491.33$                 
Reserve 46,491.33$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 46,491.33$                 

TR-20240131-01-C 1,000.16$                   
Reserve 1,000.16$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,000.16$                   

TR-20240131-02-C 19.79$                        
Operating 19.79$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 19.79$                        

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 13 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 137 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

TR-20240206-01-C 7,266.36$                   
Reserve 7,266.36$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 7,266.36$                   

TR-20240215-01-C 44,554.78$                 
Reserve 44,554.78$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 44,554.78$                 

TR-20240222-01-C 73,119.45$                 
Reserve 73,119.45$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 73,119.45$                 

TR-20240228-01-D (49.29)$                      
Operating (49.29)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (256.86)$                    
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (108.00)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (132.18)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.81)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous 540.48$                      

TR-20240229-01-C 1,202.46$                   
Reserve 1,202.46$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,202.46$                   

TR-20240229-02-C 18.18$                        
Operating 18.18$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 18.18$                        

TR-20240305-01-C 4,738.36$                   

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 14 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 138 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Reserve 4,738.36$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 4,738.36$                   
TR-20240314-01-D (972.55)$                    

Operating (972.55)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (382.18)$                    
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (132.18)$                    
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (323.13)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.81)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous (52.99)$                      

TR-20240314-02-C (352.20)$                    
Operating (352.20)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (352.20)$                    

TR-20240314-08-D (479.70)$                    
Operating (479.70)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

3000 - Groundwater Management
500 - Public Notices and Publications (479.70)$                    

TR-20240315-09-D (114.44)$                    
Operating (114.44)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (114.44)$                    

TR-20240325-01-C 1,541.88$                   
Operating 1,541.88$                   

Prosperity 7152
Credit

3000 - Groundwater Management
900 - Miscellaneous 1,541.88$                   

TR-20240328-01-D (1,541.88)$                 
Operating (1,541.88)$                 

Prosperity 7152

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 15 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 139 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

Debit
3000 - Groundwater Management

900 - Miscellaneous (1,541.88)$                 
TR-20240331-01-C 1,490.38$                   

Reserve 1,490.38$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 1,490.38$                   
TR-20240331-02-C 19.25$                        

Operating 19.25$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 19.25$                        
TR-20240331-03-C 2,135.50$                   

Reserve 2,135.50$                   
CD# 0515

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,135.50$                   
TR-20240331-04-C 2,070.21$                   

Reserve 2,070.21$                   
CD# 0517

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,070.21$                   
TR-20240410-01-C 1,292.24$                   

Reserve 1,292.24$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 1,292.24$                   
TR-20240426-01-C 1,541.88$                   

Reserve 1,541.88$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
3000 - Groundwater Management

900 - Miscellaneous 1,541.88$                   
TR-20240429-01-C 311.69$                      

Operating 311.69$                      
Prosperity 7152

Credit

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 16 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 140 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 2:59 PM

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 311.69$                      

TR-20240429-02-C 85.51$                        
Reserve 85.51$                        

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 85.51$                        

TR-20240430-01-C 1,450.47$                   
Reserve 1,450.47$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,450.47$                   

TR-20240430-02-C 18.07$                        
Operating 18.07$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 18.07$                        

(blank)
(blank)

(blank)
(blank)

(blank)
(blank)

Grand Total 279,056.57$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 17 of 17TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 141 of 178



TGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control
Review Reports - ICRR-20240531-01 -
May 2024
TexanaGroundwater Conservation DistrictInternal Control Review Report

Reporting Period Start: 5/1/24
Reporting Period Stop: 5/31/24

Related Documentation
TGCD - Adm - FM - Financial Registry - FY2024 - Check Out 20240625.1501 CPD - Check In
20240625.1542 CPD
Bank Statement Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs) Note Links:  

List of UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs) Note Links:

List of VOIDED Check Note Links:  

List of CANCELLED Transaction Note Links:

List of COLLATERAL RECORD Note Links:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Payable (ACCTPs)Notes:  

List of DISPUTED and UNPAID Accounts Receivable (ACCTRs)Notes:  

Internal Control Review

TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240331-04 - CD# 0517 - RECONCILED1.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240331-03 - CD# 0515 - RECONCILED2.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240531-01 - Prosperity 9448  - RECONCILED3.
TGCD - Adm - FM - Bank Statements - BS-20240531-02 - Prosperity 7512 - RECONCILED4.

1.

TGCD - Adm - FM - Collateral Records - CR-20240531-01 - Prosperity Bank - May 20241.

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 142 of 178

evernote:///view/60335230/s348/1e6a8077-dd39-4a55-5845-38739fc937c9/5251c142-2bd2-4a9e-a825-e06ac42b430a/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/ae02451e-aa40-c6e4-8e92-e46fed8a473e/d9bfdcf3-0ae6-435d-a7e4-7e6d71ce04a0/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/da6864c6-e182-db9b-01a2-84bfc91dd34d/d9bfdcf3-0ae6-435d-a7e4-7e6d71ce04a0/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/acd9841d-45c2-95d4-0e5d-ab4783b2926a/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/a58317c4-f6ab-42fa-bcbb-534645fc0fb8/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/
evernote:///view/60335230/s348/18e3c83b-430f-fb5e-eee9-3e74cd06ea26/27e14c38-8277-4fc0-8bcd-79fc5a192bfa/


Question #1:  Are bank statements and reconciliation forms consistent and balanced?
 Yes
Comments:  

Question#2:  Are dual signatures present on all checks?  Yes
Comments:

Question#3:  Are all expenditures associated with employees, including credit card
expenditures, or contractors appropriate and properly authorized?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#4:  Are all electronic transactions (drafts and transfers) appropriate and
properly documented?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#5:  Are all voided checks properly marked and recorded?  
Comments: N/A

Question#6:  Does the market valueof the pledged collateral and FDIC insurance exceed
the total of investments per banking institution?  Yes
Comments:  

Question#7:  Do the external financial recordscomport with internal financial records of
the District?  Yes
Comments:

PDF of Executed Report:

Note Template Link:   TGCD - Adm - FM - Internal Control Review Reports - ICRR-YYYYMMDD-
SQ

TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 143 of 178

evernote:///view/212557806/s348/eaf1dd68-19fe-4b65-ba1c-87be2a6bac4e/eaf1dd68-19fe-4b65-ba1c-87be2a6bac4e/b7446aa4-db54-42e0-8da2-b81385279985


File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Bank Account Account Statement
Reconciled Bank 
Statement

Fund
 Reported Balance 

as of the Start of the 
Fiscal Year 

Total of 
Recorded Credit 
Transactions for 

Fiscal Year

Total of 
Recorded Debit 

Transactions 
for Fiscal Year

Calculated 
Balance

Current Reported 
Balance

Unreconciled 
Amount

Prosperity 9448 Prosperity 9448 : BS-20240531-01: DATE: 05/31/2024 BS-20240531-01 Reserve 377,589.85$             284,553.65$       (75,000.00)$       587,143.50$       587,143.50$        -$              

Prosperity 7152 Prosperity 7152 : BS-20240531-02: DATE: 05/31/2024 BS-20240531-02 Operating 23,655.87$               77,023.95$         (26,360.48)$       74,319.34$         74,319.34$          -$              

CD# 0515 CD# 0515 : BS-20240331-03: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20240331-03 Reserve 254,239.74$             4,258.92$           -$                   258,498.66$       258,498.66$        -$              

CD# 0517 CD# 0517 : BS-20240331-04: DATE: 03/31/2024 BS-20240331-04 Reserve 254,112.67$             4,129.22$           -$                   258,241.89$       258,241.89$        -$              
Total 909,598.13$             369,965.74$       (101,360.48)$     1,178,203.39$    1,178,203.39$     -$              

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Account Reconciliation Report Page 1 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 144 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Institution Type CUSIP Description
Safekeeping 
Location

Safekeeping 
Receipt

Credit 
Rating

Market Value

Prosperity Bank FDIC Insurance N/A N/A N/A N/A 250,000.00$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138WDYL9 FNMA #AS4314 FHLB AA+ 517,410.23$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3138X6MR3 FNMA CRA #AU6667 FHLB AA+ 92,902.34$         
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3133KYUZ0 FR #RB5100 FHLB AA+ -$                    
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31418DZ54 FNMA #MA4363 FHLB AA+ 445,419.84$       
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 31417DY56 FNMA #AB7031 FHLB AA+ -$                    
Prosperity Bank Pledged Collateral 3132D6AC4 FR #SB8103 FHLB AA+ 117,686.44$       

Total 1,423,418.85$    

The funds of the District are adquately protected by FDIC Insurance and pledged collateral.

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Collateral Report Page 2 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 145 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Budget Program Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
1001 - Administration - Revenue 283,400.00$            291,881.98$               8,481.98$               
1003 - Administration - Technology (20,300.00)$             (633.73)$                     19,666.27$             
1004 - Administration - General (164,100.00)$           (19,917.17)$                144,182.83$           
2000 - Groundwater Conservation (9,500.00)$               -$                            9,500.00$               
3000 - Groundwater Management (5,000.00)$               (888.82)$                     4,111.18$               
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (32,600.00)$             (247.00)$                     32,353.00$             
5000 - Groundwater Policy -$                         (90.00)$                       (90.00)$                  
6000 - Groundwater Protection (8,000.00)$               (1,500.00)$                  6,500.00$               
8000 - Groundwater Resource Planning (7,500.00)$               -$                            7,500.00$               
Total 36,400.00$              268,605.26$               232,205.26$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Program Page 3 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 146 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Budget Category Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
0120 - Tax Collections 272,300.00$            273,659.08$             1,359.08$               
0130 - Interest Income 9,300.00$                18,092.90$               8,792.90$               
0140 - District Fees - GCD Management and Operations Cost-Sharing Fees -$                         -$                          -$                       
0143 - District Fees - Permitting 1,800.00$                -$                          (1,800.00)$             
0145 - District Fees - Enforcement -$                         -$                          -$                       
0150 - Grants -$                         -$                          -$                       
0160 - Refunds -$                         130.00$                    130.00$                  
0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees -$                         (7,500.00)$                (7,500.00)$             
0300 - Reserve Funds -$                         -$                          -$                       
210 - Legal Services (25,000.00)$             (6,465.00)$                18,535.00$             
215 - Legislative and Administrative Action Representation Services (5,000.00)$               -$                          5,000.00$               
220 - Professional and Technical Services (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
221 - Professional and Technical Services - Auditor (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (2,500.00)$               (605.72)$                   1,894.28$               
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (7,500.00)$               (1,648.57)$                5,851.43$               
224 - Professional and Technical Services - Accountant -$                         -$                          -$                       
225 - Professional and Technical Services - Hydrogeologist (27,500.00)$             -$                          27,500.00$             
226 - Professional and Technical Services - Laboratory (10,000.00)$             -$                          10,000.00$             
227 - Professional and Technical Services - VCGCD (92,800.00)$             -$                          92,800.00$             
230 - Insurance and Bonds (2,300.00)$               (1,747.34)$                552.66$                  
310 - Supplies - Office (4,000.00)$               (736.00)$                   3,264.00$               
311 - Supplies - Field -$                         (247.00)$                   (247.00)$                
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (2,500.00)$               (135.20)$                   2,364.80$               
325 - Fuel -$                         -$                          -$                       
330 - Training and Travel Expenses (1,500.00)$               -$                          1,500.00$               
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions -$                         (116.95)$                   (116.95)$                
350 - Lease -$                         -$                          -$                       
360 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing -$                         -$                          -$                       
361 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Well Plugging (500.00)$                  -$                          500.00$                  
362 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Borehole Logging (2,500.00)$               -$                          2,500.00$               
363 - Sponsorships and Cost-Sharing - Conservation Promotion (9,500.00)$               -$                          9,500.00$               
380 - Aquifer Monitoring Network Development (7,500.00)$               -$                          7,500.00$               
410 - Equipment - Office (1,000.00)$               (522.36)$                   477.64$                  
415 - Equipment - Field -$                         -$                          -$                       
420 - Technology Services - Office Productivity (2,700.00)$               -$                          2,700.00$               
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (500.00)$                  (447.21)$                   52.79$                    
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (7,000.00)$               (743.29)$                   6,256.71$               
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (800.00)$                  (172.68)$                   627.32$                  
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (3,000.00)$               (560.25)$                   2,439.75$               
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (800.00)$                  (346.83)$                   453.17$                  
436 - Technology Services - Internet (500.00)$                  (225.82)$                   274.18$                  
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (5,500.00)$               (573.52)$                   4,926.48$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Category Page 4 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 147 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Budget Category Budget Amount Transaction Total Budget Balance
500 - Public Notices and Publications (6,000.00)$               (1,340.95)$                4,659.05$               
900 - Miscellaneous (200.00)$                  857.97$                    1,057.97$               
Total 34,800.00$              268,605.26$             233,805.26$           

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Budget by Category Page 5 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 148 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Program Sum of Split Amount
1001 - Administration - Revenue 291,881.98$               
1003 - Administration - Technology (633.73)$                    
1004 - Administration - General (19,917.17)$               
3000 - Groundwater Management (888.82)$                    
4000 - Groundwater Monitoring (247.00)$                    
5000 - Groundwater Policy (90.00)$                      
6000 - Groundwater Protection (1,500.00)$                 
(blank)
Grand Total 268,605.26$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Program Page 6 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 149 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Category Sum of Split Amount
0120 - Tax Collections 273,659.08$               
0130 - Interest Income 18,092.90$                 
0160 - Refunds 130.00$                      
0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees (7,500.00)$                 
210 - Legal Services (6,465.00)$                 
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (605.72)$                    
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (1,648.57)$                 
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,747.34)$                 
310 - Supplies - Office (736.00)$                    
311 - Supplies - Field (247.00)$                    
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (135.20)$                    
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions (116.95)$                    
410 - Equipment - Office (522.36)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (447.21)$                    
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (743.29)$                    
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (172.68)$                    
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (560.25)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (346.83)$                    
436 - Technology Services - Internet (225.82)$                    
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (573.52)$                    
500 - Public Notices and Publications (1,340.95)$                 
900 - Miscellaneous 857.97$                      
(blank)
Grand Total 268,605.26$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary by Category Page 7 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 150 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Row Labels Sum of Split Amount
TR-20231005-01-C 2,691.91$                   

Reserve 2,691.91$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 2,691.91$                   
TR-20231024-01-D (395.04)$                    

Operating (395.04)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1003 - Administration - Technology

430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (54.67)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (191.39)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (48.50)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      

TR-20231024-02-D (1,747.34)$                 
Operating (1,747.34)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
230 - Insurance and Bonds (1,747.34)$                 

TR-20231024-03-D (247.00)$                    
Operating (247.00)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

4000 - Groundwater Monitoring
311 - Supplies - Field (247.00)$                    

TR-20231024-04-D (45.00)$                      
Operating (45.00)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (45.00)$                      

TR-20231031-01-C 983.96$                      
Reserve 983.96$                      

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 8 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 151 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

0130 - Interest Income 983.96$                      
TR-20231031-02-C 5.02$                          

Operating 5.02$                          
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 5.02$                          
TR-20231109-01-C 701.35$                      

Reserve 701.35$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 701.35$                      
TR-20231109-03-C 130.00$                      

Reserve 130.00$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds 130.00$                      
TR-20231120-01-C 75,000.00$                 

Operating 75,000.00$                 
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds 75,000.00$                 
TR-20231120-01-D (75,000.00)$               

Reserve (75,000.00)$               
Prosperity 9448

Debit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0160 - Refunds (75,000.00)$               
TR-20231130-01-C 888.25$                      

Reserve 888.25$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 888.25$                      
TR-20231130-02-C 10.03$                        

Operating 10.03$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 10.03$                        

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 9 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 152 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

TR-20231201-01-C 43.21$                        
Reserve 43.21$                        

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 43.21$                        

TR-20231201-01-D (659.25)$                    
Operating (659.25)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
500 - Public Notices and Publications (659.25)$                    

TR-20231201-02-D (605.72)$                    
Operating (605.72)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
222 - Professional and Technical Services - Tax Assessor (605.72)$                    

TR-20231201-03-D (358.24)$                    
Operating (358.24)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (358.24)$                    

TR-20231201-04-D (794.84)$                    
Operating (794.84)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1003 - Administration - Technology
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (74.62)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (13.82)$                      
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.77)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (156.36)$                    
900 - Miscellaneous (399.79)$                    

TR-20231208-01-C 13,845.19$                 
Reserve 13,845.19$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 10 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 153 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

0120 - Tax Collections 13,845.19$                 
TR-20231211-01-C 27,052.54$                 

Reserve 27,052.54$                 
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 27,052.54$                 
TR-20231219-01-C 6,691.23$                   

Reserve 6,691.23$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 6,691.23$                   
TR-20231231-01-C 883.22$                      

Reserve 883.22$                      
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 883.22$                      
TR-20231231-02-C 20.00$                        

Operating 20.00$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 20.00$                        
TR-20231231-03-C 2,123.42$                   

Reserve 2,123.42$                   
CD# 0515

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,123.42$                   
TR-20231231-04-C 2,059.01$                   

Reserve 2,059.01$                   
CD# 0517

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,059.01$                   
TR-20240106-01-C 7,848.65$                   

Reserve 7,848.65$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 7,848.65$                   

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 11 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 154 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

TR-20240108-01-C 4,722.22$                   
Reserve 4,722.22$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 4,722.22$                   

TR-20240111-01-C 17,572.47$                 
Reserve 17,572.47$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 17,572.47$                 

TR-20240118-01-C 6,774.31$                   
Reserve 6,774.31$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 6,774.31$                   

TR-20240118-01-D (1,648.57)$                 
Operating (1,648.57)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
223 - Professional and Technical Services - Appraisal District (1,648.57)$                 

TR-20240118-02-D (74.12)$                      
Operating (74.12)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
410 - Equipment - Office (74.12)$                      

TR-20240118-03-D (21.00)$                      
Operating (21.00)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
500 - Public Notices and Publications (21.00)$                      

TR-20240118-04-D (1,275.00)$                 
Operating (1,275.00)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
210 - Legal Services (915.00)$                    

3000 - Groundwater Management

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 12 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 155 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

210 - Legal Services (360.00)$                    
TR-20240118-05-D (45.00)$                      

Operating (45.00)$                      
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

410 - Equipment - Office (45.00)$                      
TR-20240118-06-D (826.60)$                    

Operating (826.60)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

310 - Supplies - Office (197.52)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (74.62)$                      
433 - Technology Services - Record Archival System (57.56)$                      
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.77)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous (404.21)$                    

TR-20240125-01-C 5,895.41$                   
Reserve 5,895.41$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 5,895.41$                   

TR-20240130-01-C 46,491.33$                 
Reserve 46,491.33$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 46,491.33$                 

TR-20240131-01-C 1,000.16$                   
Reserve 1,000.16$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,000.16$                   

TR-20240131-02-C 19.79$                        
Operating 19.79$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 19.79$                        

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 13 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 156 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

TR-20240206-01-C 7,266.36$                   
Reserve 7,266.36$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 7,266.36$                   

TR-20240215-01-C 44,554.78$                 
Reserve 44,554.78$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 44,554.78$                 

TR-20240222-01-C 73,119.45$                 
Reserve 73,119.45$                 

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0120 - Tax Collections 73,119.45$                 

TR-20240228-01-D (49.29)$                      
Operating (49.29)$                      

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (256.86)$                    
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (108.00)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (132.18)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.81)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous 540.48$                      

TR-20240229-01-C 1,202.46$                   
Reserve 1,202.46$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,202.46$                   

TR-20240229-02-C 18.18$                        
Operating 18.18$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 18.18$                        

TR-20240305-01-C 4,738.36$                   

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 14 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 157 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Reserve 4,738.36$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 4,738.36$                   
TR-20240314-01-D (972.55)$                    

Operating (972.55)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (382.18)$                    
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (132.18)$                    
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (323.13)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.81)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous (52.99)$                      

TR-20240314-02-C (352.20)$                    
Operating (352.20)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (352.20)$                    

TR-20240314-08-D (479.70)$                    
Operating (479.70)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

3000 - Groundwater Management
500 - Public Notices and Publications (479.70)$                    

TR-20240315-09-D (114.44)$                    
Operating (114.44)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (114.44)$                    

TR-20240325-01-C 1,541.88$                   
Operating 1,541.88$                   

Prosperity 7152
Credit

3000 - Groundwater Management
900 - Miscellaneous 1,541.88$                   

TR-20240328-01-D (1,541.88)$                 
Operating (1,541.88)$                 

Prosperity 7152

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 15 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 158 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Debit
3000 - Groundwater Management

900 - Miscellaneous (1,541.88)$                 
TR-20240331-01-C 1,490.38$                   

Reserve 1,490.38$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 1,490.38$                   
TR-20240331-02-C 19.25$                        

Operating 19.25$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 19.25$                        
TR-20240331-03-C 2,135.50$                   

Reserve 2,135.50$                   
CD# 0515

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,135.50$                   
TR-20240331-04-C 2,070.21$                   

Reserve 2,070.21$                   
CD# 0517

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 2,070.21$                   
TR-20240410-01-C 1,292.24$                   

Reserve 1,292.24$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 1,292.24$                   
TR-20240423-01-D (270.00)$                    

Operating (270.00)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

210 - Legal Services (180.00)$                    
3000 - Groundwater Management

210 - Legal Services (90.00)$                      
TR-20240425-02-D (1,965.00)$                 

Operating (1,965.00)$                 

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 16 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 159 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
210 - Legal Services (855.00)$                    

3000 - Groundwater Management
210 - Legal Services (480.00)$                    

5000 - Groundwater Policy
210 - Legal Services (90.00)$                      

6000 - Groundwater Protection
210 - Legal Services (540.00)$                    

TR-20240426-01-C 1,541.88$                   
Reserve 1,541.88$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

3000 - Groundwater Management
900 - Miscellaneous 1,541.88$                   

TR-20240426-01-D (402.50)$                    
Operating (402.50)$                    

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (41.67)$                      
315 - Certified Mail and Stamps (27.20)$                      
340 - Membership/Dues/Subscriptions (116.95)$                    
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (10.66)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (132.18)$                    
434 - Technology Services - Website and Email System (31.91)$                      
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.81)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
900 - Miscellaneous 40.14$                        

TR-20240426-02-D (2,955.00)$                 
Operating (2,955.00)$                 

Prosperity 7152
Debit

1004 - Administration - General
210 - Legal Services (1,155.00)$                 

3000 - Groundwater Management
210 - Legal Services (840.00)$                    

6000 - Groundwater Protection
210 - Legal Services (960.00)$                    

TR-20240429-01-C 311.69$                      
Operating 311.69$                      

Prosperity 7152

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 17 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 160 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 311.69$                      
TR-20240429-01-D (181.00)$                    

Operating (181.00)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit
3000 - Groundwater Management

500 - Public Notices and Publications (181.00)$                    
TR-20240429-02-C 85.51$                        

Reserve 85.51$                        
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 85.51$                        
TR-20240430-01-C 1,450.47$                   

Reserve 1,450.47$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 1,450.47$                   
TR-20240430-02-C 18.07$                        

Operating 18.07$                        
Prosperity 7152

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0130 - Interest Income 18.07$                        
TR-20240510-01-C 1,960.87$                   

Reserve 1,960.87$                   
Prosperity 9448

Credit
1001 - Administration - Revenue

0120 - Tax Collections 1,960.87$                   
TR-20240520-01-D (7,500.00)$                 

Operating (7,500.00)$                 
Prosperity 7152

Debit
1004 - Administration - General

0215 - District Fees - Legislative Services Cost-Sharing Fees (7,500.00)$                 
TR-20240521-01-D (834.20)$                    

Operating (834.20)$                    
Prosperity 7152

Debit

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 18 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 161 of 178



File: TGCD - Financial Transaction Registry - FY2024 Print Timestamp: 6/25/2024: 3:41 PM

1004 - Administration - General
310 - Supplies - Office (83.59)$                      
430 - Technology Services - Miscellaneous (11.73)$                      
432 - Technology Services - Digital Record and Workflow System (142.84)$                    
435 - Technology Services - Phone System (49.36)$                      
436 - Technology Services - Internet (32.26)$                      
450 - Equipment Maintenance and Repair (106.88)$                    
900 - Miscellaneous (407.54)$                    

TR-20240531-01-C 1,635.48$                   
Reserve 1,635.48$                   

Prosperity 9448
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 1,635.48$                   

TR-20240531-02-C 60.04$                        
Operating 60.04$                        

Prosperity 7152
Credit

1001 - Administration - Revenue
0130 - Interest Income 60.04$                        

(blank)
(blank)

(blank)

(blank)
(blank)

Grand Total 268,605.26$               

Note: cash-basis accounting method used to develop reports.
Tab: Transaction Summary - List Page 19 of 19TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 

 Page 162 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 163 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 164 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 165 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 166 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 167 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 168 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 169 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 170 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 171 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 172 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 173 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 174 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 175 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 176 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 177 of 178



TGCD - Meeting Packet for July 18, 2024 | 
 Page 178 of 178


	3.1.1
	3.1.2
	memoJuly112024
	Appendix
	TGCD - WV-20191219-01 - Comparison to 20240403 Draft - All Mark Up

	3.2.1
	3.4..4
	3.4.1
	3.4.2
	3.4.3
	3.5..3
	3.5.1
	3.5.2
	3.5.4
	3.5.5
	3.5.6
	3.5.7
	3.5.8
	3.6.1
	3.6.2
	3.6.3
	5.1.1
	9.1.1
	9.2.1
	9.2.2
	9.2.3
	9.2.4
	9.2.5
	9.2.6
	9.3.1
	9.3.2
	9.3.3
	9.8.1
	9.9.1



